
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Local Pension Board  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Monday, 16 September 2019 at 9.30 am 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield. 

Contact: Miss C Tuohy (0116 305 5483). 

Email: cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2019.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Local Pension Board Terms of Reference.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 9 - 22) 

6.  
  

Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 
2018/19.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 23 - 56) 

7.  
  

LGPS Central Governance. 
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 57 - 62) 

8.  
  

Pension Fund Administration Report - April to 
June 2019 Quarter.  
 
 
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 63 - 74) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


 
 
 
 

 
9.  

  
Pension Fund Administration - Current 
Developments.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 75 - 112) 

10.  
  

Consultation - Local Valuation Cycle and 
Management of Employer Risk.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 113 - 
124) 

11.  
  

Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 125 - 
134) 
 

12.  
  

Pension Fund Training Policy.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 135 - 
152) 

13.  
  

Dates of Future Meetings  
 

 
 

 

 Future meetings of the Local Pension Board will be held at 9.30am 
on the following dates:- 
 
2 December 2019 
16 March 2020 

29 June 2020 
28 September 2020 
7 December 2020 
 
 

 

14.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
TO: 
 
Employer representatives 
 
Mrs. R. Page CC 
Cllr. E. Pantling 
 
Employee representatives 
 
Ms. C. Fairchild 
Ms. D. Haller 
Mrs. D. Stobbs 
 



 

  

 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Pension Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on 
Monday, 17 June 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Ms. C. Fairchild 
Ms. D. Haller 
Mr. D. Jennings CC 
 

Mrs. R. Page CC 
Cllr. E. Pantling 
Ms. D. Stobbs 
 

 
1. Election of Chairman.  

 
RESOLVED: 
  
That Mr. D. Jennings CC be appointed Chairman of the Local Pension Board. 
  

Mr. D. Jennings in the Chair 
 

2. Election of Vice Chairman.  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That Mrs. R. Page CC be appointed Vice Chairman of the Local Pension Board. 
  
 

3. Minutes.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed. 
 
Members noted that a letter had been sent to  Cllr. D. Alfonso on behalf of Board 
members, thanking her for her contribution to the work of the Board  during her time as 
the Leicester City Council employer representative. 
 
It was noted that the review of the Terms of Reference (ToR) was still ongoing. It was 
intended that the Board would be asked to approve a revised ToR document at its next 
meeting in September. 
 

4. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

5. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 

3 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

 
6. Urgent Items.  

 
There were no items for consideration. 
 

7. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

8. Internal Audit Arrangements (Including Internal Audit Work Conducted During 2018-19 
and the Internal Audit Plan 2019-20).  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources, which detailed the 
internal audit arrangements for the Leicestershire Pension Fund. A copy of the report 
marked ‘8’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Board welcomed the outcome of the 2018-19 audit report which had resulted in a 
positive assurance grading  with no high importance recommendations. 
 
In response to questions from members regarding audit days assigned to client 
management, the Director confirmed that the five additional days undertaken related to 
days spent researching and meeting with other LGPS Partners internal audit services to 
discuss progress with LGPS Central Ltd and the compilation of a Pensions Assurance 
Framework concerning key areas for the company. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

9. Local Government Pension Scheme Complaints Procedure  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources and Director and 
Law and Governance, the purpose of which was to update the Board on the Internal 
Dispute Regulation Procedure (IDRP) complaints received since January 2018 and seek 
agreement to proposed changes to which officers were authorised to deal with 
complaints. A copy of the report marked ‘9’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Director of Corporate Resources reported that Scheme members were able to 
complain under the IDRP Stage 1 and Stage 2 procedure to either the member’s scheme 
employer or their previous employing authority. Whilst the report detailed cases referred 
directly to the fund during 2018, it was possible there were other cases the Fund was 
unaware of which were managed by the complainants previous employer. 
 
It was noted that the IDRP procedure reviewed whether a correct decision had been 
made by either the employer or the administering authority, highlighting any areas of 
potential maladministration. It did not have the authority to change a decision but could 
award the complainant with compensation up to  £750 where appropriate. 
 

4



 
 

 

The proposed changes to the delegation would enable the Director of Law and 
Governance to delegate stage 1 and 2 complaints to internal and external solicitors 
(usually Derbyshire County Council), or the Pensions Manager. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the Board note the Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure complaints the 
scheme had received since January 2018. 
 

b) That the Director of Law and Governance (or in their absence, the Head of Law) is 
authorised, in appropriate circumstances, to delegate the adjudication of Stage 1 
complaints or matters referred at Stage 2 to a suitably qualified experienced 
internal or external decision maker as set out in paragraphs 10 to 12 in the report. 

 
 

10. Pension Fund Administration Report - January to March 2019 Quarter  
 
The Board received a report from the Director of Corporate Resources on relevant issues 
in the administration of Fund benefits, including the performance of the Pensions Section 
against its Performance Indicators. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 10’ is filed 
with these minutes. 
 
Arising from the discussion the following points were made: 
 
i) The remaining cases as of March 2019 for preserved benefits, aggregations and 

retirements were all higher than the Key Performance Indicator target. Efforts to 
reduce these figures were ongoing, however it was recognised that the current 
priority for the Pension Section was to process preserved benefits which needed to 
feed through to the Fund’s actuarial valuation. The Director confirmed that the 
Section was working at full capacity to try and manage the high level of work;  
 

ii) Whilst  outstanding GMP reconciliation cases were relatively high, the Fund had 
effectively completed Phase 1 and its performance compared favourably with 
many other funds; 
 

iii) 30,000 pensioners were now being paid each month through the new pensioner 
payroll system Altair. The Altair Member Self-Service system had gone live in 
January and as of the end of May 17,500 members had signed up; 
 

iv) The Pensions Section had met with Legal Services to discuss the Internal Dispute 
Resolution Procedure appeal in a neighbouring Fund concerning a member who 
had a terminal illness, which had been upheld by the Pensions Ombudsman. The 
Fund had since written to all employers to ask that they review the process to 
which they deal with such cases to reduce any risk to the fund.  
 

v) Since the Board’s last meeting, Members were pleased to note that all but one of 
the larger employers, who were required to provide their Fund discretions, had 
done so. It was expected that the one outstanding discretion was near completion. 
 

vi) Since the Board’s last meeting, progress had been made on the outstanding 
Transfer of Undertakings Protection of Employment (TUPE) cases. There however 
remained a disagreement with Avanti Schools and Govindas, concerning the bond 

5



 
 

 

value, and it was suggested that the scheme members affected be written to in 
order for them to be aware of the situation. TUPE cases were carefully monitored 
by the Pensions Manager due to the significant risk to the Fund should an 
outsourcing employer be declared bankrupt without a bond having been signed. 

 
vii) From the next quarter another four areas; Leicester City Council, Academies paid 

through East Midlands Shared Services, De Montfort University and the Police and 
Crime Commissioners office would be paid through monthly postings.  

 
viii) Government were currently consulting on a change which would see the Fund’s 

evaluation move to a four year cycle to align with other government calculations. 
More information was awaited as to how it would function, whether there would be 
a bridging year and how it could affect smaller less stable employers. The change 
to the valuation cycle would not affect the reporting on investment manager 
performance on the six monthly valuation updates which would continue to be 
considered by the Local  Pension Committee;. 
 

ix) Whilst the Fund could not be fully protected against the potential financial 
implications of Brexit, it had mitigated some of the risk by employing an active 
currency hedge. 

 
Members thanked the Pensions Section for its  hard work, noting the significant work 
pressures it currently faced. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the Board notes the report. 
 

b) That the Pensions Manager writes to the nine members of Avanti affected to 
inform them of the lack of bond agreement. 

 
11. Pension Fund Governance and Administration  

 
The Director of Corporate Resources provided the Board with report on the governance 
and administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme. A copy of the report, 
marked ‘Agenda Item 11’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Board noted that in order for the Board to fully meet the LGPS Regulations 
Scorecard requirements in relation to its training plan, the names of individual board 
members would be added to the current programme. 
 
Board members also supported the utilisation of the training available via the Pensions 
Regulator website which contained various resources and online learning to better 
support their knowledge and understanding. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the names of individual board members be added to the training plan in order for it 
to be fully compliant with Local Government Pension Scheme requirements. 
 
 
 
 

6



 
 

 

 
12. Year-End and Statutory Deadlines.  

 
The Director of Corporate Resources provided the Board with an update on progress 
made on the 2018/19 year-end process for the production of the annual benefit 
statements required by the deadline of the 31 August 2019. A copy of the report, marked 
‘Agenda Item 12’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Board note the report. 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
17 June 2019 

 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD – 16 SEPTEMBER 2019   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval of a revised Terms of Reference for 
the Local Pension Board. 

  
Background 

 
2. The Local Pension Board was established on 1st April 2015 in accordance with 

Section 5 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and regulation 106 of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended). The Board was 
established by Leicestershire County Council as Administering Authority for the 
Leicestershire Pension Fund and operates independently of the Local Pension 
Committee.  
 

3. The role of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority as Scheme Manager in 
ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme including, securing compliance with LGPS 
Regulations, other legislation and the requirements of the Pensions Regulator.  
 

4. Leicestershire County Council retains ultimate responsibility for the administration 
and governance of the scheme. The role of the Board is to support the 
Administering Authority to fulfil that responsibility and secure compliance with any 
requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator. 

 
Terms of Reference Review 

 
5. The existing terms of reference were approved in 2015 upon the formation of the 

Board. Having now been operational for over four years, it was considered 
beneficial for the terms to be reviewed and this process began earlier in 2019. The 
review was undertaken having regard to the Scheme Advisory Board’s (SAB) model 
terms of reference, Government legislation, other relevant guidance and terms of 
reference of other Board’s. Members of the Board have been consulted during the 
drafting of the revised terms.  
 

6. While the main features of the original Terms of Reference have been retained, 
such as the number of times the Board will meet each year and the number of 
members on the board, the revised version, attached as an appendix, offers far 

 
9 Agenda Item 5



 

 

more detail and clarity about the role and function of the Board, and the role of its 
members. The Board’s attention is specifically drawn to the following key changes: -  

 

 Activity of the Board – Further clarification has been added on the role of the 
Board and its activity specifically regarding reviewing the Fund’s annual report 
and progress with asset pooling. 
 

 Membership – It is proposed that a reserve employee representative shall be 
appointed at the Fund’s AGM who will act as substitute at meetings where an 
elected employee representative is unable to attend. Where a vacancy occurs 
mid-year the reserve employee representative shall serve as a full member until 
the next AGM. 

 

 Urgent Meetings – Urgent meetings may be called by the Chairman in 
consultation with the Scheme Manager if a matter arises that cannot be delayed. 

 

 Agenda Items - Any member can request that an item be added to the Agenda 
so long as it is relevant to the remit of the Board,  

 

 Annual Reports – Each member of the Board will be expected to produce an 
Annual Report. 

 

 Training – Where members of the Board attend external training they will be 
expected to report back at the next appropriate meeting on what they have 
learnt to ensure information is disseminated to other board members. 

 
7. Reference to the Local Pension Board in Leicestershire’s Constitution will be 

removed as part of the County Council’s upcoming Constitution review to recognise 
that the Board is not a Committee of the County Council.. Any reference to the 
Board as a committee of the County Council has been removed from the website. 
 

8. The Terms of Reference will be reviewed at least every three years or following any 
significant change to relevant regulations. 

 
Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Local Pension Board approve the revised Terms of Reference.  

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
Appendix 
 
Appendix` - Draft Terms of Reference 
 
Background Papers 
 
The Role of the Local Pension Board – Local Pension Board 19th June 2015 -
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1122&MId=4437&Ver=4 
  
 

10

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1122&MId=4437&Ver=4


 

 

Scheme Advisory Board – Local Pension Board Guidance - 
http://lgpsboard.org/index.php/board-publications/board-guidance 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Declan Keegan, Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property 
Telephone 0116 3056199 
Declan.keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

11

http://lgpsboard.org/index.php/board-publications/board-guidance
mailto:Declan.keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

 
LEICESTERSHIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
Introduction  
 

1. This document sets out the terms of reference of the Local Pension Board of 
Leicestershire County Council (the 'Administering Authority') a scheme 
manager as defined under Section 4 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 
The Local Pension Board (hereafter referred to as 'the Board') is established 
in accordance with Section 5 of that Act and under regulation 106 of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended).  
 

2. The Board is established by the Administering Authority and operates 
independently of the Local Pension Committee. Relevant information about its 
creation and operation are contained in these Terms of Reference. 
 

3. The Board is not a committee constituted under Section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and therefore no general duties, responsibilities or 
powers assigned to such committees or to any sub-committees or officers 
under the constitution, standing orders or scheme of delegation of the 
Administering Authority apply to the Board unless expressly included in this 
document.  
 

4. The Board’s Terms of Reference as set out in this document have been 
produced in line with the relevant regulations, legislation and guidance, a list 
of which is included as the appendix. 
 

Responsibility and Role of the Board 
 

5. The responsibility of the Board, as defined by sections 5(1) and (2) of the 
Public Service Pensions Act 2013, is to assist the Administering Authority as 
Scheme Manager in ensuring the effective and efficient governance and 
administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) including:  
 

 securing compliance with the LGPS Regulations and other legislation 
relating to the governance and administration of the LGPS;  

 securing compliance with requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by 
the Pensions Regulator; and, 

 such other matters as the LGPS Regulations may specify.  

 
6. The Administering Authority retains ultimate responsibility for the 

administration and governance of the scheme. The role of the Board is to 
support the Administering Authority to fulfil that responsibility and secure 
compliance with any requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator.  
 
 
 

13



 

Page 2 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

7. In its role, the Board will have oversight of the administration and governance 
of the Fund including:  
 

 the direction of the Fund and its overall objectives;  

 the administration of benefits and contributions.  

 
8. The activity of the Board can also include:  

 

 reviewing the Fund’s governance and policy documents;  

 reviewing compliance with the Fund’s governance and policy documents;  

 reviewing the administrative and investment performance of the Fund as part 
of the Fund’s annual report;  

 reviewing LGPS Central pooling as part of the Fund’s annual report. 

 reviewing the ongoing arrangements for the training of Board members; 

 reviewing the Fund’s Risk Register;  

 reviewing Audit and Assurance reports; and,  
 reviewing the Fund’s website.  

 
Membership 
 

9. The Board shall consist of six voting members, as follows: 
 

Three Employee Representatives; and  
 

Three Employer Representatives. 
 

10. There shall be an equal number of Employee Member and Employer 
Representatives. 
  

Employee representatives  
 

11. Employee representatives shall be members of the scheme in either an 
active, deferred or retired member capacity. 

 
12. Employee representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity to 

attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in 
training as required.   

 
13. A total of three employee representatives shall be appointed following a 

transparent recruitment process which should be open to all Fund members 
and be approved by the Administering Authority. A vote will be held, if 
required, at the Fund’s Annual General Meeting and employee 
representatives will normally serve a term of three years, provided they 
remain members of the Fund, but shall be free to stand for re-election at the 
end of that period provided they are still a member of the Scheme.  
 

14. A reserve employee representative shall be appointed at the Fund’s AGM. 
The reserve representative will act as a substitute at meetings of the Board 
where the elected employee representative is unable to attend.  

14



 

Page 3 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

 
15. In the event of a vacancy occurring during the course of the year the reserve 

employee representative shall serve on the Board as a full member until the 
Fund’s AGM. 
 

16. Subject to paragraph 15, where an employee representative vacancy remains 
mid-year the Administering Authority will seek to appoint a replacement who 
shall hold office until the next AGM of the Fund. 

 
Employer representatives  
 
17. No officer or elected member of the Administering Authority who is 

responsible for the discharge of any function of the Administering Authority 
under the Regulations may serve as a member of the Board.  

 
18. Employer representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity to 

attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in 
training as required.    
 

19. Employer representatives shall be able to appoint substitutes, subject to the 
requirements set out in paragraph 17 above. 
 

20. A total of three employer representatives shall be appointed to the Board 
by the Administering Authority  and Leicester City Council and will comprise of 
two elected members from Leicestershire County Council (the Administering 
Authority) and one from Leicester City Council.  
 

21. Where an employer representative vacancy occurs mid-year the 
Administering Authority will seek to appoint a replacement. 
 

Terms of Office  
 

22. The term of office for employee representatives is three years. The positions 
will be on a rolling basis to ensure that at least one employee representative 
position will become available at the Fund’s Annual General Meeting.  
 

23. The term of office for Employer Board members is one year. 
 

24. A Board member may be appointed for further terms of office using the 
methods set out in paragraphs 13, 15, 16 and 20. 

 
25. Board membership may be terminated prior to the end of the term of office 

due to: 
 
(a) A employee representative appointed on the basis of their membership 

of the scheme no longer being a scheme member in the Fund. 
(b) A Board member no longer being able to demonstrate to the 

Administering Authority their capacity to attend and prepare for meetings 
or to participate in required training. 

(c) The representative being withdrawn by the nominating body  

15



 

Page 4 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

(d) A Board member has a conflict of interest which cannot be managed in 
accordance with the Board's conflict policy. 

(e) A Board member becomes a member of the Local Pension Committee. 
(f) A Board member who is an officer of the Administering Authority 

becomes responsible for the discharge of any function of the 
Administering Authority under the Regulations. 

(g) An employer representative ceases to be an elected Councillor for the 
local authority they represent.  

 
Appointment of chair 

 
26. It will be the first business of the Board at its meeting following the Fund’s 

AGM to appoint a chair and vice chair.  
 
Meetings  

 
27. The Board shall meet four times a year, at the Administering Authorities’ 

offices, during working hours. 
 

{Note – The statutory requirements is that the Board shall meet at least twice 
a year. The expectation is therefore that members of the Board must attend at 
least two meetings during the year.)  
 
 

28. Urgent meetings of the Local Pension Board may be called by the Chair in 
consultation with the Scheme Manager if a matter arises that does not allow 
delay. 

 
29. The Board’s meetings will be open to the general public (unless there is an 

exemption under relevant legislation which would preclude part (or all) of the 
meeting from being open to the general public).  

  
30. The Administering Authority shall also publish other information about the 

Board including: 
 
(a) Public agendas and minutes 
(b) Annual reports on the work of each Board member. 

 
31. The Local Pension Board is not a committee of the Administering Authority 

but the Authorities’ rules, as set out in the Constitution, regarding notice of 
meetings, publishing agendas, reports, minutes papers (unless confidential), 
will apply. 
 

32. Any member of the Board may request that an item be added to the agenda 
for consideration, subject to that matter being relevant to the remit of the 
Board as set out in these terms of reference. Any items considered outside of 
the remit will be discussed with the Chairman of the Board and the requestor 
notified of the outcome and rational.  

 

16

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1187&info=1&MD=Constitution


 

Page 5 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

33. Subject to the agreement set out in paragraph 32 above, the Administering 
Authority will schedule the report for the next appropriate Board meeting, 
taking into account items already scheduled and the level of preparation 
required. Note – if the next meeting of the Board is to be held within 28 days 
of receipt of the request, the report is unlikely to be scheduled before the 
following meeting 

 
Quorum 

 
34. A meeting is only quorate when at least 50% of the total Board membership 

are present (ie. 3 members), including at least one employee representative 
and one employer representative.  

 
35. A meeting that becomes inquorate may continue but any decisions will be 

non-binding. 
 

Decision making  
 

36. Each Member of the Board will have an individual voting right, however it is 
expected that the Board will, as far as possible, reach a consensus. 
 

37. In the event of a tied vote the chair will not have a casting vote. The matter 
under consideration which has been the subject of a tied vote shall be 
referred to the Pension Committee and/or Administering Authority together 
with the views of the members on the matter. 
 

38. Meetings of the Board will be formal occasions to be minuted accordingly. 
Meetings will be conducted adhering to the standing orders of the 
Administering Authority, as set out in its Constitution, so far as such do not 
make the business of the Board unviable.   
 

39. Officers representing the Administering Authority will be expected to produce 
reports for the Board and provide advice and clarification during the Board’s 
meetings.  

 
Advisors to the Board 
 

40.  The Board may be supported in its role and responsibilities through the 
appointment of advisers and shall, subject to any applicable regulation and 
legislation from time to time in force, consult with such advisers to the Board 
and on such terms as it shall see fit to help better perform its duties including:- 
  

a. The Governance Adviser  
b. The Fund’s Actuary;  
c. The Administering Authority  
d. The Fund’s Legal Adviser;  
e. The Scheme Manager.  
f. Other advisers, so approved by the Scheme Manager.  

 
 

17



 

Page 6 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

Reporting 
 

41. At all times the Board will comply with reporting requirements as set out in the 
Scheme Advisory Code of Conduct. 

 
Standards of Conduct and Conflicts of interest 

 
42. All members of the Board must declare to the Administering Authority on 

appointment and at any such time as their circumstances change and 
complete a register of interests, any potential conflict of interest arising as a 
result of their position on the Board.  

 
43. A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is likely to 

prejudice a person’s exercise of functions as a member of the Board. It does 
not include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of that person 
being a member of the Scheme. 

 
44. The principles included in Leicestershire County Council’s Code of Conduct 

for Members will apply to all Members of the Board. The Code is set out in the 
Council’s Constitution. 
 

Knowledge and Skills  
 

45. Following appointment, each Member of the Board should be conversant with:  
 

 the legislation and associated guidance of the LGPS; and,  

 any document recording policy about the administration of the LGPS 
which is for the time being adopted by the Fund.  

 
The Administering Authority will provide a training programme which all Board 
Members will be required to attend. 
 

46. Where Board members attend external training, they will be required to 
provide a report back to the Board in order to share the knowledge gained 
with other Board members. 

 

Expenses 
  

47. The Pension Fund may meet reasonable expenses of the Board. Such 
expenses will be met by the Fund and have regard to the Administering 
Authorities Members’ Allowance Scheme.  

 
48. For the avoidance of doubt, Board members shall not receive an annual 

allowance of any kind. 
 
Budget 
 

49. The Board is to be provided with adequate resources to fulfil its role. In doing 
so the budget for the Board will be met from the Fund. 
 

18

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=1187&info=1&MD=Constitution


 

Page 7 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

50. The Board will seek approval from the Administering Authorities Section 151 
Officer for any expenditure it wishes to make. 

 
Review of terms of reference 

 
51. These Terms of Reference shall be reviewed on each material change to 

those part of the Regulations covering local pension boards and at least every 
three years. 
 

52. These Terms of Reference were adopted on [INSERT DATE]].  
 

 
 
…………………………………………. 
Signed on behalf of the Administering Authority 
 
 
 
………………………………………… 
Signed on behalf of the Board 
 
 

Published  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

19



 

Page 8 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

 
Appendix  

 
The following documents/regulations have been referred to in formulating the 
Board’s Terms of Reference; 
 

 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) – Guidance on the creation and 
operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales (issued by the 
Shadow Scheme Advisory Board); 

 

 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013; 
 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations; 
 

 Code of Practice No 14 governance and administration of public service 
pension schemes (issued by the Pensions Regulator);  

 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) - Questions and Answers on 
Local Pension Boards (issued by the Shadow Scheme Advisory Board); 

 

 Template Terms of Reference for a Local Pension Board (issued by the 
Shadow Scheme Advisory Board). 

 
Interpretation 
 
The following terms used within the Terms of Reference document have the 
meanings as outlined below: 
 

‘the Act’ The Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 
 
‘the Code’ means the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice 

No 14 governance and administration of public 
service pension schemes. 

   
'the Committee'  means the committee who has delegated decision 

making powers for the Fund in accordance with 
Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972.  

 
'the Fund' means the Fund managed and administered by 

the Administering Authority.  
 
'the Guidance' means the guidance on the creation and operation 

of local pension boards issued by the Shadow 
Scheme Advisory Board.  

 
'the Regulations'  means the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Regulations 2013 (as amended from time to time), 
the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) 
Regulations 2014 (as amended from time to time) 

20



 

Page 9 LOCAL PENSION BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

including any earlier regulations as defined in 
these regulations to the extent they remain 
applicable and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 (as amended from time to time). 

 
'Relevant legislation'  means relevant overriding legislation as well as the 

Pension Regulator's Codes of Practice as they 
apply to the Administering Authority and the Board 
notwithstanding that the Codes of Practice are not 
legislation.  

 
'the Scheme'   means the Local Government Pension Scheme in 
    England and Wales. 
 
Employee   means a person who will represent the interest  
Representative’  of pension scheme members 
 
 
‘Employer   means a person appointed to represent the  
Representative’  employers of the Fund’s members  

 
 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD – 16TH SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
  

PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018/19 

 

Purpose of the Report 

 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Board’s views on the Annual Report and 

Accounts of the Pension Fund for the financial year  2018/19. 

Background 

 
2. There is a statutory requirement for the Annual Report and Accounts (attached as an 

appendix) to be available on or before 1st December 2019.  The accounts are 
unqualified by the auditor. 
 

3. The Annual Report sets out the way in which the Pension Fund is managed both in 
relation to the administration of benefits and to the investment of the Fund’s assets, 
and this is an opportunity for the Board to suggest any amendments which they feel 
are necessary before it is received by the Local Pension Committee. 
 

4. The Local Pension Committee will approve the Annual Report and Accounts of the 
Pension Fund for the financial year 2018/19 at its meeting on the 8 November before 
being received at the Local Pension Fund AGM on 18 November 2019. 
 

Recommendation 
 
5. The Board is asked to comment on the draft Pension Fund Annual Report and  

Accounts for 2018/2019. 
 

Appendix 
 

Appendix A - Pension Fund Annual Report 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None Specific 

 
 

23 Agenda Item 6



Background Papers 
 

None 
 
Officers to Contact 

 
Declan Keegan – telephone (0116) 305 7668 
Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
Chris Tambini – telephone (0116) 305 6199 
Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

24

mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME LEICESTERSHIRE 

Administered by 

LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

Pension Fund Annual Report 

Year ended 31st March 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 25



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

2 
 

CONTENTS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................... 3 

2.      SCHEME MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS ……………………………………………………………………………….4 

3.      RISK MANAGEMENT………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….6 

4.      FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE………………………………………………………………………………………………………..8 

5.      PENSION SCHEME ADMINISTRATION……………………………………………………………………………………… 10 

6.      INVESTMENT POLICY AND PERFORMACNE…………………………………………………………………………….  14 

7.       LGPS CENTRAL POOL………………………………………………………………………………………………………………18 

8.      ACTUARIAL STATEMENT………………………………………………………………………………………………………….23 

9.      FINANCIAL STATEMENTS……………………….……………………………………………………………………………….25 

10.     GOVERNACNE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT …………………………………………………………………..………..26 

 

 

 
The fund has a number of policy statements that are available on the links below. They have not 
been reproduced within the Annual report, as when taken in combination are sizeable and they have 
previously been seen by the Pensions Committee. 
 
11. Statement of Accounts - https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-
spending/accounts-and-payments 
 
14. Funding Strategy Statement - 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-
statement-v2.pdf 
  
15. Statement of Investment Principles - 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2016/12/19/2016statementofinvest
mentprinciplesevennewerversion.pdf 
 
16. Administration & Communication Strategy - 

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-

and-Comms-Strategy.pdf 

 

 

26

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2019/5/1/funding-strategy-statement-v2.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2016/12/19/2016statementofinvestmentprinciplesevennewerversion.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2016/12/19/2016statementofinvestmentprinciplesevennewerversion.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-and-Comms-Strategy.pdf
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/sites/default/files/field/pdf/2018/9/7/LCC-Pension-Fund-Admin-and-Comms-Strategy.pdf


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

3 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Leicestershire County Council is the administering body for the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) within Leicestershire. Leicestershire County Council has a statutory obligation to administer a 
Pension Fund for eligible employees of all Local Authorities within the County boundary and also the 
employees of certain other scheduled and admitted bodies.  The Fund does not cover teachers, 
police or fire-fighters as they have their own schemes. 
 
This report has been produced in accordance with Section 57 of the Local Government Pension 
Regulations 2013. It sets out the way in which the Pension Fund is managed both in relation to the 
administration of benefits and to the investment of the Fund’s assets. 
 
The benefits within the scheme are determined by regulation and guaranteed by statute.  The 
pension fund exists to help defray the cost of paying pension benefits.  Contributions to the pension 
scheme are made by both employees and employers.  Any new employee is automatically brought 
into the scheme unless they opt out. 
 
The Fund’s membership increased by approximately 1,800 during 2018/19 and at the year-end stood 
at just over 93,000. During the year there was a small relative decrease in preserved members, 
however this was more than offset by increases in the number of pensioners and active members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

4 
 

2. SCHEME MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS 

The Local Pension Committee is responsible for the management of the Fund, and focuses primarily 
on investment issues and the important policies that the Fund has to have. The Committee 
comprises of five County Council members, two from Leicester City Council, two members 
representing the District Councils, one representative of De Montfort/Loughborough Universities 
and three non-voting staff representatives. In order to ensure continuity, staff representatives, who 
are chosen at the Fund’s Annual General Meeting, are appointed to the Committee for a three year 
period but arrangements have been made to ensure that at least one staff representative place 
becomes available each year. The Local Pension Committee sets the overall investment strategy for 
the Fund and will deal with all investment governance issues. The Committee meets quarterly and 
also has a separate annual meeting to consider strategic issues relevant to the Fund. 

 
The Investment Subcommittee consists of six voting members (the Chair, Vice Chair, one other 
elected member of the County Council, the Universities representative and one member 
representing each of the City and District Councils, all of whom are members of the Local Pension 
Committee) and one non-voting staff representative. Its role is to consider action that is in-line with 
the strategic benchmark agreed by the Board and to take a pro-active approach to the Fund’s 
investments, and also to deal with ‘tactical’ issues associated with implementing the strategy, such 
as investment manager appointments and the timing of asset allocation changes. 

 
The Committee and Subcommittee receive investment advice from Hymans Robertson LLP and are 
supported by Independent Advisor, Clare Scott. Other consultants will also be utilised if there is felt 
to be an advantage to this. 
 
The Local Pension Board is a statutory committee required under LGPS Regulations. This board 
consists of three member (i.e. employee) representatives – elected in the same manner as the 
employee representatives on the Local Pension Committee - and three employer representatives, 
with the latter being two elected members of Leicestershire County Council and one from Leicester 
City Council. Their role is to assist the administering authority in ensuring compliance with 
Regulations and the requirements of the Pensions Regulator, and as such their focus is on pension 
administration issues.  
 
There is a statutory requirement for the Fund to maintain a Governance Compliance Statement, 
and this is replicated in full in appendix A. 
 
At a national level the LGPS is governed by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local 
government (MHCLG) and the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board (SAB). The LGPS also takes account of 
guidance issued by the Pensions Regulator and Pensions Ombudsman determinations. 
 
The role of the Scheme Advisory Board is to help and support MHCLG and administering 
authorities fulfil their statutory duties and obligations. SAB aims to be both reactive and 
proactive. It will seek to encourage best practice, increase transparency and coordinate technical 
and standards issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

5 
 

 

Scheme Management and Advisors 

Local Pension Committee  

Leicestershire County Council  Leicester City Council 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) Cllr. D. Bajaj 

Mr. T. Barkley CC (Vice-Chairman) Cllr. R. Govind 

Mr. P. Bedford CC   

Dr. S. Hill CC District Council Representatives 

Mr. M. Hunt CC Cllr. C. Frost  

  Cllr. M. Graham MBE 

Employee Representatives University Representative 

Mr. R. Bone Dr. P. Cross 

Mr. N. Booth   

Ms. J. Dean   

Local Pension Board 

Employer Representatives Employee Representatives 

Mr. D. Jennings CC (Chairman) Ms. C. Fairchild 

Mrs. R. Page CC (Vice-Chairman) Ms. D. Haller 

Cllr. E. Pantling Ms. D. Stobbs 

Officers responsible for the Fund 

Finance Pensions Administration 
Chris Tambini - Director of Resources - Leicestershire 
County Council  

Ian Howe - Pensions Manager - Leicestershire County 
Council 

Investment Managers 

Investments managed by LGPS central Pool   
LGPS Central  
 Global equities (Harris, Schroders & Union)   

Others:   

Adams Street Partners Kames Capital 

Ashmore Kravis Kohlberg Roberts 

Aspect Capital Legal & General Investment Management 

La Salle Investment Management Macquarie Investments 

Catapult Venture Managers Partners Group 

Colliers Capital UK Permal (formerly Fauchier Partners) 

Cristofferson, Robb & Company Pictet Asset Management 

Industry Funds Management M&G Investments 

Millennium Global Investments Limited Ruffer LLP 

Internally Managed Stafford Capital Partners 

JP Morgan Asset Management Standard Life Aberdeen 

    

Pooled investments 

LGPS Central 

Fund Custodian Legal Advisor 

JPMorgan, Bournemouth County Solicitor, Leicestershire County Council 

Independent Investment Advisor Actuary and Investment Consultant  

Clare Scott Hymans Robertson LLP, Glasgow 

Auditor AVC Provider 

Grant Thornton LLP Prudential, London 

Banker Scheme Administrator 

National Westminster Bank, Leicester Leicestershire County Council 

 

29



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

6 
 

 

3. Risk management 

There are many risks associated with the Local Government Pension Scheme, covering both the 

investment of the assets and the administration of the benefits payable. It is almost impossible 

to create a definitive list of these risks and many of the on-going risks are monitored by Officers. 

Regular reports are brought to the attention of the Local Pension Committee and Local Pension 

Board to provide the latest position on key risks. 

The biggest risk for the Fund is that the value of assets held will ultimately be insufficient to pay 

for all the benefits due. This risk is quantified by a triennial actuarial valuation, which compares 

the value of assets to the accrued liabilities and sets employer contribution rates that are 

considered appropriate to ensure that all benefits can be paid; the Fund is currently in deficit 

(i.e. the value of assets is less than the accrued liabilities) so the employer contribution rates, at 

a whole Fund level, include payment for not only future service as it accrues but also 

contributions towards the deficit. Given that many benefits will not become payable for a long 

time, and taking into account the financial strength of most employers, the actuary is able to 

take a long-term approach to recovery of the deficit. 

The performance of the assets of the Fund is an important element in helping to maintain 

affordable employer contribution rates – the higher the long-term investment return achieved, 

the more of the benefits will be funded by investment returns rather than employer and 

employee contributions. A long-term approach is taken to agreeing an asset allocation 

benchmark, with both return and risk considered. The Fund’s asset allocation policy is reviewed 

annually. 

Individual investment manager performance is of lower importance than the asset allocation 

benchmark, but individual manager performance does have an impact and their performance is 

considered and reviewed regularly. When there are doubts about a manager’s ability to 

generate future performance that is in line with the Fund’s requirements/expectations 

appropriate action will be taken, and this may include the release of a manager. It is not 

generally optimal to change managers on a frequent basis due to the associated costs (which are 

mainly the impact of bid/offer spreads and charges within markets), and as a result changes are 

considered very carefully before they are agreed. 

The Local Pension Committee receives advice from the investment practice of Hymans 

Robertson and is supported by an independent investment advisor, and this assists in making 

decisions in respect of both overall investment policy, manager selection/retention and good 

governance. 

The Fund employs a large number of investment managers, and all of these invest in a specific 

asset class and can be termed ‘specialist’. Many of these managers are required to have external 

assessments of their systems and operations and these are reviewed to ensure that there are no 

issues which put the Fund’s investments at risk. 

Other investment managers that the fund employs are appointed by LGPS Central Ltd, a 

company which pools together pension fund assets from various pension funds across the 

30



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

7 
 

Midlands. Leicestershire County Council along with 8 other pension funds is a joint owner of the 

company.  The company has its own governance and risk management structures in place. 

Under the Pensions Regulations all employers must pay over contributions deducted from 

employees, plus the required employer contributions, to the administering authority within 

certain timescales. These payments are monitored closely, and immediate action is taken in the 

event of a late payment. Late payment does not put the benefits of individuals at risk. 

Many of the risks associated with providing efficient and cost-effective Pensions Administration 

are mitigated by ensuring that officers involved in LGPS are knowledgeable and well-trained on 

an on-going basis. Ensuring that employers understand their responsibilities to the Fund and 

fulfil them efficiently is also crucial, and an on-going programme of support for them is in place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

31



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

8 
 

4. Financial Performance 

Non-investment cash inflows for the fund come via contributions from Employers.  There were a 

small number of incidences of late payment of contributions by employers over the year, and 

these were exclusively because of administrative failings on their part. On each occasion the 

employer was reminded of their responsibilities, and it was not felt necessary to levy interest on 

overdue contributions.  Employer contributions ranged from 15.0% to 33.0% with average 

employer rate being 23.8%. 

 

Administrative costs were at £7.1m for the year compared to £6.1m in the previous year 

(2017/18). This increase was largely due to additional investment in a new pensions 

administration system. Investment management fees are variable as they are based on market 

values that are impossible to predict in advance. Action was taken during the year to reduce 

investment management costs where there was opportunity to do so.  There were no material 

movements in non-investment assets and liabilities.  

 

The general trend of overall net cash flows is monitored, whether these are derived from 

investment or non-investment related sources. Non-investment cash flows were positive by 

almost £26m in 2018/19, compared to £22m in 2017/18. In addition, the Fund received 

investment income of £37m. In the context of the funds, £4 billion of assets, the cash flow 

movements are not material. Any short-term cash surpluses or shortfall can be managed through 

the funds passive investments that have good levels of liquidity. 

 

Cash flows are unlikely to reduce in the near future, despite cuts to budgets within Local 

Authorities that could reduce membership (and hence employee/employer contributions). Whilst 

benefits paid are increasing, due to increasing numbers of pensioners and inflation-linked annual 

increases, the value of this increase is offset by the increasing rate of employers’ contribution. A 

recent Government consultation indicated that the Universities and Colleges could cease their 

offer of LGPS to non-academic staff this could result in a reduction in the available cashflow and 

will require monitoring.  The Fund also has significant investments in accumulation funds where 

the investment income is reinvested rather than distributed, and these could, if required, be 

changed to income producing funds with the generation of an extra £30m+ cash flow p.a. 

The overall impact of a strong positive cash flow is that the Fund has flexibility in the selection of 
investments and fewer restrictions due to liquidity concerns. There are strong controls in place 
for ensuring that all income due is received and that benefits are not overpaid. A monthly 
automated check of pensioners is carried out through a reliable tracing agency to ensure that 
pensions cease upon death, and the Fund has a very low incidence of overpayments that occur 
either as a result of fraud, late notification or error. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

9 
 

Details of contributions in and payments out of the fund are shown below: 
 

2017/18   2018/19 

£m Payments in: £m 

(139.2) Employer Contributions (149.5) 

(38.3) Member Contributions (39.9) 

(12.4) 
Transfers in From Other Pension 
funds (10.3) 

(189.9) Total Inflows (199.7) 

  
 

  

  Payments out:   

115.0 Pensions 124.8 

31.8 Lump Sum Retirement Benefits 32.5 

3.1 Lump Sum Death Benefits 4.6 

18.0 
Payments to and on Account of 
Leavers 11.9 

167.9 
 

173.8 

  
 

  

(22.0) Net Cash (inflows) (25.9) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

10 
 

5. Pension Scheme Administration 

The number of scheme members who are either receiving a benefit or who have a future 
entitlement to one increased by 1,874 over the course of the year. This figure excludes the 
4,000+ members who have no entitlement to a benefit from the fund but do retain the right to 
either a refund of contributions or a transfer to an alternative pension arrangement.  
 
Active membership increased by 774 from 33,638 to 34,412.  
Pensioners increased by 1,503 from 26,470 to 27,973.  
Preserved membership decreased by 403 from 31,064 to 30,661.  
 
The Fund’s employers have completed the auto enrolment process, with many of the larger 
employers completing this prior to 2017/18. The auto enrolment process forces employing 
bodies to bring almost all employees that are eligible to join the LGPS but are not currently 
scheme members into the scheme. This is reflected by the increase in active members over the 
past 5 years.  
 

The number of pensioners has been increasing at a rate of 4% per annum over the past 5 years, a 

trend that is expected to continue. 

 

Membership numbers over the last 5 years are shown in the graph below:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20,000

22,000

24,000

26,000

28,000

30,000

32,000

34,000

36,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Contributors

Pensioners

Preserved Benefit

  % increase over 5 years 
Contributors 5.3% 
Pensioners 21.5% 
Preserved Benefit 13.4% 

34



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

11 
 

 

Leicestershire Pension Fund contributions: 

 

  
 Employer 

Contributions  
 Employee 

Contributions  
Employer Name 

 
  

  £000 £000 
Leicester City Council                       40,445                  10,729  
Leicestershire CC                       33,265                    8,755  
The Chief Constable & The OPCC                         8,798                    2,675  
Leics De Montfort University                         8,281                    2,683  
Loughborough University                         5,627                    1,524  
Charnwood Borough Council                         3,473                        769  
North West Leics DC                         3,069                        768  
Rutland CC                         2,481                        723  
Hinckley and Bosworth BC                         2,308                        641  
Blaby District Council                         2,150                        495  
ESPO                         1,714                        470  
Leics Fire Service (Civilians)                             882                        251  
Harborough District Council                         1,506                        348  
Oadby and Wigston BC                         1,152                        237  
Melton BC                         1,105                        260  
Academies, Free and Studio Schools                       24,821                    6,290  

35



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

12 
 

There were 1,503 new pensioners in 2018/19 split out as follows: 

  
Ill 

Health 
Early 

Retirement 
Normal 

Retirement Other Total 

2018/19 New 
Pensioners 41 1,135 64 263 1,503 

 

The Leicestershire Local Government Pension Fund provides services in line with the requirements of 

a fund of this nature. This includes the correspondence with members, calculation of benefits, 

maintenance of members records and data and Pension payments through the payroll service.  A 

service is also provided for members to log onto the online member site and a service for employers 

to upload member data monthly. 

The fund has 27.9 full time equivalent working in Pension Scheme Administration. Scheme 

membership is 93,000 equating to 3,340 members per FTE. 

The fund has several performance indicators in respect of administration performance, which are 
split between speed of processes and customer satisfaction. These are reported on a quarterly basis 
to the Local Pension Board.  
 
 

FE and Sixth Form colleges                         5,634                    1,622  
Other organisations                         2,045                        484  
Town & Parish Councils                             725                        168  
Total                    149,481                  39,892  

Full Year - 1 April 2018 to 

31 March 2019               

Business Process 

Perspective Target 
    

Customer Perspective - 

Feedback Target 
    

Retirement Benefits 

notified to members within 

10 working days of 

paperwork received 92% 98% ▲ 

Establish members 

understanding of info 

provided - rated at least 

mainly ok or clear 95% 98% ▲ 

Pension payments made 

within 10 working days of 

receiving election 95% 95% ▲ 

Experience of dealing with 

Section - rated at least good 

or excellent 95% 93% ► 

Death benefits/payments 

sent to dependant within 

10 working days of 

notification 90% 90% ▲ 

Establish members thoughts 

on the amount of info 

provided - rated as about 

right 92% 96% ▲ 

        

Establish the way members 

are treated - rated as polite 

or extremely polite 97% 99% ▲ 

Good or better than 

target ▲     

Email response - 

understandable 95% 95% ▲ 

Close to target ►     

Email response - content 

detail 92% 94% ▲ 

Below target ▼     Email response - timeliness  92% 97% ▲ 

36



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

13 
 

Leicestershire Pension Fund key administrative Performance Statistics 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other fund information: 

Help desk arrangements and information are as follows: 

Contact Type From To Contact 

MSS Helpdesk Phones 8:00am 17:00pm 
0116 
3057886 

Benefits Helpdesk 
Phone 8:00am 17:00am 

0116 
3054000 

Pensions Benefits Queries Pensionsbenefits@leics.gov.uk 

Email MSS Queries PensionsMSS@leics.gov.uk 

General Pensions Queries Pensions@leics.gov.uk 

  Address Pensions Section 

 
Leicestershire County Council 

 
County Hall 

 
Glenfield 

 
Leicester 

Accuracy of Data Common Data 99.20% 

  Scheme Specific (Conditional Data) 88.70% 

Average Cases Per Member of Staff Average per FTE (Completed tasks) 491 

Complaints 
5 stage 2 IDRP complaints in 
2018/19 

Less than 
0.5% 

Types of cases dealt with (only KPI 
tasks) Deaths 923 

  Pension Estimate 1,039 

  CETV Estimate 295 

  Retirement 2,585 

  Deferred Benefits 1,643 

  Transfers in and Out 119 

  Calculate and Pay a Refund 892 

  Formal notification of Joining 6,870 

37

mailto:Pensionsbenefits@leics.gov.uk
mailto:PensionsMSS@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Pensions@leics.gov.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

14 
 

 
LE3 8RB 

 

Internal Disputes 

If you are not satisfied with any decision given by either the Pension Section or your employer/ 

former employer, relating to your Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) benefits, you may 

appeal in writing under the Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (IDRP). You must write within 6 

months of receiving the decision.  

Any points of difference should firstly be addressed with the Pensions Office on an informal basis. 

You can write to: 

The Leicestershire County Council Pension Section, County Hall, Glenfield, Leicester, LE3 8RB 

Or, contact the Pensions Officer who has dealt with your case. Their name and contact details will be 

on your correspondence. 

We will then try to resolve the matter for you. Should you still be unhappy and wish to take the 

matter further you can request an information sheet and form to complete. This will contain the 

name and address of the ‘Specified Person’ nominated by your employer or former employer who 

would formally investigate your complaint. 

Following this, if you are still dissatisfied with their decision, a ‘second stage’ of complaint can be 

requested, which will be looked at by the Legal Services team at Leicestershire County Council in 

most cases. 

Should you be dissatisfied with the outcome of this, further details of the next stages of complaint 

would be provided at the time, should this be necessary. 

Further advice can be found at the following: 

   

   

   

   

   
6. INVESTMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE  

38



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

15 
 

At the January 2019 meeting of the Local Pension Committee there were a number of relatively 

minor changes made to the Fund’s strategic asset allocation benchmark. At the year end the 

benchmark in place was: 

 

The setting of the strategic benchmark is the most important decision that the Committee makes. It 

is this decision that will have by far the most significant impact onto the investment return achieved 

and approximately 90% of the Fund’s overall risk is encompassed within the choice of benchmark. 

Individual investment manager choices are important as they can produce added value by 

outperforming their benchmarks, but their influence is small in comparison to the choice of 

benchmark. 

Although some investments have moved over to LGPS central as part of asset pooling, the Local 

Pension Committee still retain full responsibility for asset allocation and will continue to be 

accountable for the majority of the Fund’s investment performance. 

A comprehensive analysis of investment classes and manager performance is provided in Appendix 

A.  A summary is provided below: 

 1 Year %p.a. 3 Years %p.a. 
  Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark 

Equities 6.9 7.2 13.6 12.5 
Income Assets 6.6 5.4 10.3 

 

 

 

7.3 
Alternative 0.5 4.9 5.0 4.9 
TOTAL FUND 5.2 6.6 10.6 9.6 

39



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

16 
 

 

The Fund has a large number of investment managers and it is inevitable that some of them will 

have periods of disappointing performance – sometimes this disappointing performance can last 

multiple years, and can be the result of a particular investment ‘style’ not being in favour with 

market sentiment. It is important to understand why managers are performing as they are – 

regardless of whether this is above or below their benchmark – and to assess whether this is of 

cause for concern. Knee-jerk reactions that are based on relatively short periods of poor 

performance are not sensible, and understanding the reasons for poor performance is vital. It is 

implausible to believe that all managers appointed by the Fund can simultaneously perform well, the 

Fund needs to have a reasonable spread of management styles and asset classes and occasionally a 

manager is chosen specifically because they are different to other managers. 

It is worth noting the performance of the following managers at the end of the 2018/19 financial 

year: 

 Adams Street – Private Equity, 9.1% excess return over benchmark. The benchmark of 

listed markets can be misleading, in the short-term, due to the less frequent 

valuations of private equity assets. As a riskier asset class they have greater potential 

volatility.  The 3-year return is more representative and exceeds benchmark by 0.6%. 

 IFM and KKR - global infrastructure, both managers show 10%+ return over benchmark. 

Similarly to private equity a long-term view needs to be taken, potentially incorporating the 

initial investment period. 

 Aspect Capital Partners – Targeted Return, (12.7%) below benchmark. The nature of the 

product is highly volatile, and some reassurance can be gained from the long-term 

performance of the manager (exceeds benchmark over 5-years). In the January strategy 

review the fit of the product in the portfolio was considered and the diversification from 

equity stressed as a key benefit. LGPS Central’s development of a Target Return product will 

provide a good opportunity to consider the Fund’s approach to this class. 

 Christofferson Robb & Company –Other Opportunities - 13.4% excess return over 

benchmark. The other opportunities allocation targets a higher return, at a higher level of 

risk. The investments in the opportunities area should be looked at as a collective, as not all 

will perform to target. 

The Local Pension Committee and Investment Subcommittee will continue to monitor the 

performance of managers and make changes when it is deemed appropriate, although the pooling 

of investments within the Local Government Pension Scheme mentioned earlier in this report means 

that there needs to be a greater awareness of when action is appropriate and when it is not and 

indeed action will be taken at a pooled level rather than an individual pension fund level. Since 1st 

April 2014 all investment performance has been measured net of investment management fees and 

the figures quoted above are, therefore, after taking these into account. 

The management of the individual asset classes is carried out as follows:  
 
Equities  

40



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

17 
 

 
The Fund has a global passive equity manager (Legal & General) that manages against both market 
capitalisation benchmarks and also against alternative benchmarks. There is also a specialist 
emerging market equity manager (Delaware Investments). During the 2018/19 financial year Global 
equity investments transitioned from Kleinworth Benson and Kempen to the LGPS Central Pool in 
the LGPS Global Active Equity Fund. 
 
Within equities the Fund also has private equity investments (i.e. investment in unquoted 

companies), the vast majority of which is managed on a global basis by Adams Street Partners.  

 
 
Real Income Fund 
 
Property - Colliers Capital UK manage a directly owned property portfolio but have scope to invest in 
specialist pooled property funds which are in areas that they find attractive but would not be 
practical to buy directly, usually due to the size of individual investments (for example leisure 
complexes based around multiplex cinemas or Central London offices).  
La Salle Investment Management manage a portfolio of pooled property funds, which includes some 
covering a wide range of property types and some which are specialist in nature. Via their ability to 
research the underlying holdings and the skills of the property managers, it is expected that they will 
add value to the Fund.  
The Fund has also invested in two stand-alone property ‘recovery’ funds, managed by Kames Capital.  
 
Inflation-linked  
UK inflation is one of the Fund’s biggest risks, due to the direct link to benefits and the less-direct 
link to salary growth of active members. Protecting against this risk is, therefore, sensible but it is 
also very expensive – it would involve taking money out of assets that are seeking investment 
growth (e.g. equities) and investing it in safer, and therefore lower-returning, index-linked bonds. 
This would push up employers’ contribution rates to levels which are unaffordable, so cannot be 
implemented in a large scale manner.  
The most natural asset for protecting the Fund against its inflation risk is UK Government index-
linked bonds, but these are expensive as there are a number of price-insensitive buyers and a lack of 
supply. As a result the Fund has a three-pronged approach to obtaining some protection against 
inflation – investment in infrastructure and timberland (both of which have a good historic link to 
inflation, and also good return prospects), and also a global government index-linked portfolio.  
Kames Capital manages a portfolio of global index-linked stocks. The Fund has three global 
infrastructure managers - IFM, KKR and JPMorgan - whilst the timberland investment is managed by 
Stafford Timberland 
 
Alternative Assets  
 
Targeted return - The Fund’s targeted return exposure can generally be categorised as investments 
that are seeking to make a return of 4% p.a. more than could be achieved by an investment in cash 
(i.e. only slightly below the expected long-term return from equities), and with the expectation that 
the return will be achieved with relatively low volatility. There are many different ways of achieving 
this goal and the Fund has three different managers in this area - Aspect Capital Partners, Ruffer and 
Pictet Asset Management. 
 
Credit - The major exposure within credit is in a private debt fund managed by Partners Group, 
although there are also modest exposures to a ‘best ideas’ bond fund managed by JPMorgan .The 

41



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

18 
 

Fund’s exposure to Emerging Market Debt is in a pooled fund manged by emerging market specialist 
manager Ashmore. 
 
Other opportunities Fund - The ‘Other’ weighting is often referred to as the ‘opportunity pool’. The 
broad principle of these investments is that they will offer the prospect of excellent returns, but they 
will not generally fit neatly into the Fund’s strategic benchmark. The high returns will often be 
available as a result of a market disconnection or a misunderstanding of the risks and this situation 
will not last indefinitely, and hence the opportunities cannot be considered for inclusion within the 
strategic benchmark. At the year-end the opportunity pool consisted of three different funds 
managed by M & G that have virtually identical investment aims. The intention is for the manager to 
utilise their expertise in restructuring the balance sheets of companies that are stressed, to the 
advantage of bond holders.  
Other portfolios  
The Fund also has a currency portfolio that looks to profit from relative movements in currency 

values, which is managed by Millennium. No ‘cash backing’ is required, and this portfolio is not 

included within the strategic asset allocation benchmark. 

Foreign Exchange hedging is undertaken by Kames Capital to reduce the impact of currency 

fluctuations, rather than being held for an investment return. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

19 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. LGPS Central Pool 

As mentioned earlier in the report the Fund is an investor in LGPS Central Ltd, a company which 

pools together pension fund assets from various pension funds across the Midlands. Leicestershire 

County Council along with 8 other funds is a joint owner of the company.  The company has its own 

governance and risk management structures in place.  The aim of the Company is to use the 

combined buying power of its partner funds to reduce costs, improve investment returns and widen 

the range of available asset classes for investment – all for the benefit of local government 

pensioners, employees and employers. 

LGPS Central ltd is based in Wolverhampton and their details can be found below: 

Address: 
LGPS Central Ltd,  
Mander House,  
Mander Centre,  
Wolverhampton,  
WV1 3NB 
 
Website: https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk 
e-mail: enquiries@lgpscentral.co.uk 
 
During the 2018/19 financial year, 3 global equity investments were made via the pool by the 
Leicestershire Fund as follows: 

  
Value at 31st 

March 2019 

LGPS Central  £m 

Harris 117.7 

Schroders 103.5 

Union 112.0 

Total 333.2 

As at 31st March 2019 all other assets held by the fund were held outside the Pool. However, £184m 
was invested into emerging markets equity funds via the pool in July 2019. 

 
There are also advisory and executions mandates held with the pool for the following assets: 

43

https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/
mailto:enquiries@lgpscentral.co.uk


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

20 
 

  

  Assets under 
management 

  £ 
Targeted Return          530,753,065  
Property           395,976,132  
Fixed Income          110,684,304  

 
 
 

 

 

Post Pooling report 

The information request set out below reflects the information required by Partner Funds to meet 

the CIPFA Annual Report Pooling Disclosures in 2018/19.  Please note that the information request 

reflects the start-up nature of LGPSC, and the level and complexity of the disclosures required will 

increase in later years.   

The analysis provided by LGPSC relates to the Leicestershire Pension Fund.  The provision of the 

information by LGPSC to each Partner Fund should ensure consistent reporting across Partner Funds, 

and allow LGPSC to aggregate, and reconcile back the individual Partner Fund disclosures, to the 

Company’s financial statements. 

 
Set up costs 
Leicestershire’s share of the set-up cost associated with the pool were as follows: 
£000 Cumulative 

2014/15 to 
2018/19 Total  

Set Up Costs  

Recruitment 0 

Procurement 27 

Professional Fees 2 

IT 187 

Staff Costs 97 

Other Costs  142 

 Premises 49 

 Staffing-Related Costs 5 

 Travel and Expenses 1 

 Training and Events 1 

 FCA Fees 1 

 General Admin Costs 2 

Set-Up Costs Before Funding 514 

Share Capital 1315 

Debt 685 

Other Costs  

Set-Up Costs After Funding 2514 

  

44



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

21 
 

 
 
£000 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 Cumulative 

Total 

Set-Up Costs Before Funding 95 419 - 514 

Set-Up Costs After Funding 95 2,419 - 2,514 

Transition Costs     

 
 
 
 
Recharges By Partner Funds to LGPSC in respect of Set-Up Costs 

£000 At 1 April-
18 

Recharges in  
Year 

Settled in 
Year 

At 31 March-
19 

Set-Up Cost Recharges 502 - (502) - 

 
Governance, Operator and Product Development Charged by LGPSC to Partner Funds 

£000 At 1 April-
18 

Charges in 
Year 

Settled in 
Year 

At 31 March-
19 

Governance Costs - 198 (170) 28 

Operator Costs - 406 (345) 61 

IMMC  - 16 - 16 

Product Development Costs - 102 (56) 46 

Total - 722 (571) 151 

 
 
The following Investment management costs have been charged by the pool to the Leicestershire 
Fund. 
 
 £000 Direct Total Bps 

Charge* 

1 Ad Valorem 46 46 11.64 

2 Performance - -  

3 Research - -  

4 PRIIPS Compliance - -  

5 Other (provide details) - -  

 Management Fees 46 46 11.64 

6 Commissions 4 4 1.14 

7 Acquisition/issue costs - -  

8 Disposal costs - -  

9 Registration/filling fees - -  

10 Taxes and Stamp Duty 1 1 0.35 

11 Other (provide details) - -  

 Transaction Costs 6 6 1.49 

     

12 Custody/Depositary 3 3 0.82 

13 Other (provide details)    

  Fund Accounting 1 1 0.15 

  Transfer Agent <1 <1 0.06 

45



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

22 
 

  External Audit <1 <1 0.03 

 Total Costs 56 56 14.19 

 
*BPS= Basis points charged based on Assets under Management 

46



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

23 
 

£000  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 Total 

2018/19 

Costs 

  AUM at 

31 March 

2019 £m 

2018/19 

Bps 

Charge 

Global Multi-Manager  42     4    1  3 1 52   340 13.24 

ACS Sub-Funds  42     4    1  3 1 52   340  

Private Equity 2018 V’tage  4             4    22.65 

Alternative Vehicles   4             4     

Total  46     4    1  3 1 56   340 14.20 

 
 
The above table does not include advisory and execution mandates.  The costs for these did not start coming through to the fund till the 2019/20 financial 
year. 
Items 1 – 13 relate to the categories highlighted in the management costs table. 

Asset Under Management & Performance by Product / Service 

£000  AUM At  
1 April-18 £m 

AUM At  
31 March-19 £m 

 One Year Gross 
Performance % (*) 

One Year Net 
Performance % (*) 

Passive Benchmark 
Used 

One Year Passive 
Index % (*) 

Global Ex-UK Passive         

UK Passive         

Dividend Growth Fund         

Global Multi-Manager  0 340  2.60 2.59 FT: All World 3.43 

ACS Sub-Funds  0 340      

         

Private Equity 2018 Vintage  0 0      

Alternative Vehicles   0       

         

Total  0 340      

(*) Inception to 31 March 2019 

47



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

24 
 

Transition Costs 

Please note that Partner Funds are currently investigating the methodology which will be used to 

quantify transition costs for the purposes of the CIPFA Annual Report Pooling Disclosures.  The 

details provided reconcile the starting unit price of £100 to the unit price when the assets are 

handed over to the manage 

£000 Global Multi-
Manager Sub-

Fund 

Starting Unit Price (A) 100.00 

Manager Hand-Over Unit Price (B) 98.22 

Change in Unit Price (B-A/A = C) (1.78%) 

Index Performance (D) (1.24%) 

Out/Under Performance (C-D) (0.54%) 

Total Transition Costs = Financial Impact of Out/Under Performance Calculated Above  

  

Out/Under Performance Comprised of:  

(1) Out/Under-performance between assets entering sub-fund and point of transition   (0.12%) 

(2) Transition Costs/implementation Shortfall as reported by the Transition Manager  

- Commissions (0.016%) 

- Taxes (0.033%) 

- Market Impact (0.118%) 

- Spread (0.024%) 

- Forex + 0.011% 

- Opportunity Cost (0.126%) 

- Transfer Taxes (0.023%) 

- Other (provide details)  

(3) Out/Under-performance between transition commencement and manager handover (0.091%) 

Total Transition Costs Using Above Methodology  

48



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

25 
 

8. Actuarial Statement 

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”)                                   

Actuarial Statement for 2018/19 

This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.   It has been prepared at the request of the Administering 

Authority of the Fund for the purpose of complying with the aforementioned regulation.  

Description of Funding Policy 

The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), 

effective from 15 February 2019.  In summary, the key funding principles are as follows: 

 to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund using a prudent long term view.  This will ensure 

that sufficient funds are available to meet all members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due 

for payment; 

 to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where appropriate; 

 to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to the Fund by 

recognising the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy which 

balances risk and return (NB. this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax 

payers); 

 to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining contribution 

rates.  This involves the Fund having a clear and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate 

how each employer can best meet its own liabilities over future years; and 

 to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the 

Council Tax payer from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations. 

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting aims of securing 

the solvency of the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable.  For employers whose 

covenant was considered by the Administering Authority to be sufficiently strong, contributions have 

been stabilised to return their portion of the Fund to full funding over 20 years if the valuation 

assumptions are borne out.  Asset-liability modelling has been carried out which demonstrate that if 

these contribution rates are paid and future contribution changes are constrained as set out in the 

FSS, there is still at least a 66% chance that the Fund will return to full funding over 20 years. 

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation 

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2016. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s 

assets, which at 31 March 2016 were valued at £3,164 million, were sufficient to meet 76.2% of the 

liabilities (i.e. the present value of promised retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The 

resulting deficit at the 2016 valuation was £989 million. 

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving full 

funding within a specified time period as per the FSS. Individual employers’ contributions for the 

period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set 

out in its FSS.   

49



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

26 
 

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities 

Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2016 valuation report. 

Method 

The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable 

membership up to the valuation date, and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to 

retirement or expected earlier date of leaving pensionable membership. 

Assumptions 

A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the valuation of 

the Fund assets at their market value.  

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows: 

Financial assumptions 31 March 2016 

Discount rate 4.0% 

Salary increase assumption 3.2% 

Benefit increase assumption (CPI) 2.1% 

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life expectancy 

assumptions are based on forecasts my by the Fund’s actuary with improvements in line with the 

CMI 2013 model, assuming the current rate of improvements has reached a peak and will converge 

to long term rate of 1.25% p.a.  Based on these assumptions, the average future life expectancies at 

age 65 are as follows:  

        

Males Females 

Current Pensioners  22.1 years  24.3 years 

Future Pensioners*  23.8 years  26.2 years 

*Aged 45 at the 2016 Valuation. 

Copies of the 2016 valuation report and Funding Strategy Statement are available on request from 

the Administering Authority to the Fund.  

Experience over the period since 31 March 2016 

Since the last formal valuation strong asset returns have been secured, however real bond yields 

have fallen indicating that future returns are likely to be lower than previous expected.  Both events 

are of broadly similar magnitude with regards to the impact on the funding position. The next 

actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The Funding Strategy Statement will also 

be reviewed at that time.  

Richard Warden FFA 
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 
26 April 2019 
Hymans Robertson LLP20 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 6DB 

50



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

27 
 

 
9. Financial Statements  
 
The funds financial statements can be found on the link below: 
 
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments 
 
The financial statements have been audited and an unqualified audit opinion given.  The full audit 
report can be found within the link for the financial statements above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

51

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/council-spending/accounts-and-payments


Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

28 
 

10.             GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This is the governance compliance statement of the Leicestershire Pension Fund. The Fund 

is a statutory one that is set up under an Act of Parliament and the administering authority 

is Leicestershire County Council (the Council). This statement has been prepared as 

required by the Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (No. 3) Regulations 

2007. 

2.0 FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.1 Leicestershire County Council has delegated the responsibility for decisions relating to the 

investment of the Fund’s assets to the Local Pension Committee (the LPC). This delegation 

to a specialist committee is in line with guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA). 

2.2 The LPC meets five times a year and its members act in a quasi-trustee capacity. One of 

these meetings is specifically used to focus entirely on investment strategy. No substantive 

issues of investment policy will be carried out without the prior agreement of the LPC or, in 

extreme circumstances and where it is impractical to bring a matter to the LPC, following 

consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

2.3 The LPC may delegate certain actions to the Director of Resources. It is the expectation of 

the LPC that some of the more administrative matters relating to investment management, 

such as the appointment of a custodian, are carried out by the Director of Resources. 

2.4 An Investment Subcommittee, with its members drawn from the LPC, is a decision-making 

Committee and will generally deal with more technical aspects of investment (such as 

looking at potential new investment opportunities or dealing with the appointment of new 

investment managers). 

2.5 Pensions Administration issues are the responsibility of the Local Pension Board, where this 

is relevant to their role of assisting the administering authority to meet the requirements 

of Regulations or the Pension Regulator. Many of the day-to-day pension administration 

issues are the responsibility of the Director of Resources. 

3.0 REPRESENTATION 

3.1 The LPC is made up of 13 members – 5 members representing Leicestershire County 

Council, 2 representing Leicester City Council, 2 jointly representing the District Councils, 1 

jointly representing De Montfort/Loughborough Universities and 3 non-voting staff 

representatives. The 10 voting members are appointed using the due political process or, 

in the case of the two universities, by joint arrangement. There will be at least one staff 

representative position available annually and a vote will be held to fill any vacancies at the 

Annual Meeting of the Fund. 

52



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

29 
 

3.2  The LPB is made up of 6 members – 3 employer representatives (2 elected politicians of 

Leicestershire County Council and 1 from Leicester City Council) and 3 member 

representatives. There will be at least one member representative position available 

annually and a vote will be held to fill any vacancies at the Annual Meeting of the Fund. 

4.0 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

4.1 An Annual Meeting of the Pension Fund is held annually, usually in January, to which all 

employee members and other interested parties are welcome. The purpose of the meeting 

is to present the Annual Report of the Fund and to report on current issues, as well as to 

elect staff representatives for any vacant positions on the LPC and member representatives 

for any vacant positions on the LPB. 

4.2 A number of other initiatives to involve stakeholders also take place, including: 

- Presentations by the Fund/Actuary to employing bodies; 
- Pensions roadshows at various venues; 
- The Annual Report and Account of the Pension Fund; 
- Other communications to members. 
 

5.0 REVIEW AND COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTICE 

5.1 This statement will be kept under review and will be revised and published following any 

material change in the governance arrangements of the Pension Fund. 

                 5.2 The regulations require a statement as to the extent to which the governance 

arrangements comply with guidance issued by the Secretary of State. This guidance 

contains a number of best practice principles and these are shown below with the 

assessment of compliance. 

Principle Compliance/Comments 

Structure  

                               The strategic management of fund assets clearly rests with the main 

committee established by the appointing council. 

Fully compliant 

                                  That representatives of participating LGPS employers, admitted 

bodies and scheme members are members of the committee. 

Fully compliant 

                                 That where a secondary committee has been established, the 

structure ensures effective communication across both levels. 

Fully Compliant 

                                  That where a secondary committee has been established, at least 

one seat on the main committee is allocated for a member of the 

secondary committee 

                           All Investment Subcommittee 

will be full LPC members, 

so Fully Compliant 

53



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

30 
 

Representation  

                             That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be 

represented within the main committee structure (including 

employing authorities, scheme members, independent professional 

observers and expert advisors) 

Fully Compliant 

                                     That where lay members sit on a main committee, they are treated 

equally and are given full opportunity to contribute to decision 

making, with or without voting rights 

Fully Compliant 

Selection and Role of Lay Members  

                               That committee members are fully aware of their status, role and 

function they are required to perform. 

Fully Compliant 

Voting  

                                   The policy of the administering authority on voting rights is clear and 

transparent, including the justification for not extended voting rights 

to certain groups 

Fully Compliant 

Training/Facility Time/Expenses  

                          That the policy applies equally to all members of committees Fully Compliant 

Meetings (frequency/quorum)  

That the main committee meet at least quarterly Fully Compliant 

                              That secondary committees meet at least twice a year and the 

meetings are synchronised with the main committee 

                          The Investment 

Subcommittee meets 

regularly, so Fully 

Compliant 

                                 If lay members are not included in formal governance arrangements, 

a forum is available outside of these arrangements by which their 

interests can be represented 

                                Lay members are included 

on main committee, so 

Not Relevant 

Access  

                                          That, subject to any rules in the Council’s constitution, all 

members have equal access to committee papers, documents and 

advice that falls to be considered by the main committee 

Fully Compliant 

Scope  

                                         That administering authorities have taken steps to bring wider 

scheme issues within the scope of the governance arrangements 

Fully Compliant 

54



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

31 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Publicity  

                                    That the administering authority have published details of their 

governance arrangements in such a way that stakeholders with an 

interest in the way in which the scheme is governed can express an 

interest in wanting to be part of those arrangements 

                            Fully Compliant. A copy of 

this statement has been 

sent to all employing 

authorities. 

55



Pension Fund Annual Report 

 
 

32 
 

 
 

56



 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD – 16 SEPTEMBER 2019   

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

GOVERNANCE OF LGPS CENTRAL 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with information regarding 

the governance arrangements of LGPS Central. 

Background 

2. Government instigated ‘pooling’ of pension funds in 2015 with the publication 

of criteria and guidance on pooling of Local Government Pension Scheme 

(LGPS) assets.  Administering authorities formed their own groups and eight 

asset pools were formed, which are now all operational.  The scale of each 

pool gives significant buying power in the investment market, that would not 

normally be accessible to funds, allowing forecast savings of up to £2 billion 

across all LGPS by 2033.  

 

LGPS Central Limited 

 

3. LGPS Central (“Central”) is one of the eight newly formed pools of which 

comprises Leicestershire, Cheshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire, Shropshire, 

Staffordshire, Worcestershire, West Midlands and the West Midlands 

Integrated Transport Pension Fund’s. Central is a private company limited by 

shares that is jointly owned by the eight administering authorities that formed 

the pool, with equal voting rights. The pool will manage and invest over £40 

billion of investments for the eight Councils to reduce costs, improve 

investment returns and widen the range of available asset classes for 

investment, to the benefit of pensioners, employees and employers.  

 

4. The Leicestershire Pension Fund (Fund) is a stakeholder from two different 

perspectives:-  

 a co-owner of the company (shareholder) and; 

 as a recipient of investment services.   

These interests are managed through the Shareholders Forum and the Joint 

Committee which are explained below. 

 

57 Agenda Item 7



 Fig 1.  Organisational structure and governance of ‘Central’ described throughout 

this paper. 

 

LGPS Central Board 

5. Central is managed by a Board of Directors that are responsible for the day-

to-day management and operation of the pool.  It is currently made up of three 

non-executive directors (NEDs), the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the 

deputy CEO.  The duties of the three non-executive directors is to provide 

independent oversight and challenge to the executive directors.  The non-

executive directors have the same legal duties and responsibilities as the 

executive counterparts.  It is appreciated that NEDs will not have the same 

continuous attention to the business. 

 

6. The Board is supported by an executive team of three which currently 

comprises, the Chief Investment Officer (CIO), General Counsel and the Risk 

and Compliance Officer. 

 

7. Central, like many public companies has a remuneration committee, a 

nominations committee and an audit risk and compliance committee. These 

are chaired by the three NEDs. 

 

Collective Investment Vehicles 

 

8. Collection Investment Vehicles are the legal arrangements into which any, or 

all, of the eight local authority pension funds can invest their fund.  Central 

58



currently have several collective investment vehicles active, these are 

approved by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) but not regulated by the 

FCA. The Manager, however the Central pool itself is regulated by the FCA.   

 

9. All but one of the current collective investment vehicles are within a wrapper 

known as the Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS).  Where the underlying 

asset cannot be placed into an ACS, an alternative approach is used.  For 

example, where assets are illiquid such as those within the Private Equity 

offering, Central have formed a Scottish Limited Partnership.   

 

10. The Leicestershire Pension Fund is currently invested in the Global Equity 

fund, Global Emerging Markets fund and Private Equity fund. 

 

Shareholder Forum 

 

11. The supervisory body of Central is the Shareholders' Forum, which focuses 

on shareholder issues.  The shareholder forum includes representatives from 

each of the eight pension funds. The members are elected representatives, 

typically the Chairs of the Local Pension Committee. 

 

Shareholder structure: 

 8 shareholders, holds the pension funds of Leicestershire CC, 

Derbyshire CC, Staffordshire CC, West Midlands Pension Fund, 

Cheshire CC, Nottinghamshire CC, Shropshire CC and Worcester CC. 

 Use of pension fund money to buy shares  

 Equal voting rights through ‘A’ shares  

 ‘B’ and ‘C’ shares (non-voting) and loans used to provide ‘regulatory 

capital’  

 

12. Collective discussions take place at Shareholders’ Forum.  The Shareholders 

Forum meets at least twice a year to agree certain reserved matters; this 

provides a greater degree of control than for most private companies.  Their 

powers as shareholders are set out in a Shareholder Agreement and include: 

 

 Amending or adopting new strategic plans 

 Admitting new members to the Pool 

 Appointment and removal of Directors 

 Approve accounts and appoint auditors 

 Approving capital expenditure over £5M 

 

59



13. The Shareholders’ forum normally precedes general meetings of the 

company, this allows discussion in advance of decisions being made at the 

meeting.   

 

Joint Committee 

 

14. The Joint Committee, deals with the ‘Investor’ functions related to  Fund’s 

investment in the collective investment vehicles. The Joint Committee meets 

twice a year.  It is comprised of eight members, representing each of the 

partner funds, these representatives may be different to those on the 

Shareholders’ Forum, dependent on the authority.  This is a public forum for 

Councils within the pool to receive oversight of the delivery of the objectives of 

the pool, the delivery of client service, the delivery against the LGPS Central 

business case and to deal with common investor issues.   

 

15. The Joint Committee provides assistance, guidance and recommendations to 

the individual councils, taking into consideration the conflicting demands and 

interests of the participants within the pool. The Joint Committee does not 

have delegated authority to make binding decisions on behalf of the 

participating councils.   

 

Local Role  

 

16. Each administering authority retain its Pensions Committee which continue to 

decide how the assets for that fund are to be invested in line with the 

administering authority’s agreed investment strategy. The Leicestershire Local 

Pension Committee continues to set the strategy of the Fund at its strategy 

meeting in January. 

17. LGPS Central also provide regular performance reports and, periodically, 

attend meetings with individual pension fund committees.  

 

 Practitioners’ Advisory Forum 

 

18. To allow LGPS Central access to the authorities in a more frequent and 

informal setting, for example to develop investment products, a Practitioners' 

Advisory Forum was created. This is a working group of officers from each 

pension fund that meet on a regular basis. The forum also provides support to 

members of the Shareholders’ Forum, Joint Committee and local Pension 

Committees.   

 

The PAF consists of the following working groups: 

 

60



 Administrative group 

 Audit group 

 Investment working group (IWG) 

 Client Oversight & Governance Group (COGG) 

 Finance working group 

 Responsible Investment Working group  

 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Board is asked to note this report. 

 

Officers to Contact 

 

Declan Keegan 

Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property 

Telephone: (0116) 305 6199 

Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 

Bhulesh Kachra 

Senior Finance Analyst, Corporate Resources 

Telephone: (0116) 305 1449 

Email: Bhulesh.Kachra@leics.gov.uk 

 

61

mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Bhulesh.Kachra@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD  
 

16 SEPTEMBER 2019  
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION REPORT – APRIL TO JUNE 2019 QUARTER  
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of relevant issues in the 
administration of Fund benefits, including the performance of the Pensions 
Section against its Performance Indicators. 

 
 Background 
 
2. The Pensions Section is responsible for the administration of Local 

Government Pension Scheme benefits of the Leicestershire Pension Fund’s 
98,000 members. 

  
 Performance Indicators 
 
3.  Attached as an appendix to this report are the performance indicators for the 

Pensions Section, which form part of the Section’s Service Plan and have 
been agreed by the Director of Corporate Resources. These indicators are 
split into two broad categories – how quickly processes are carried out and 
how customers feel they have been kept informed and treated by staff. 

 
  Performance of Pensions Section 
 
4. The results for the April to June 2019 quarter are detailed within Appendix A. 

Customer satisfaction remains good with Key Performance Indicator (KPI) 
results near or above target. There were expected falls in the business 
process results as resource was reallocated to work on valuation and year-
end.  

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

63 Agenda Item 8



 

Administration 
 
  
5. General Workloads 

 
The tables show the position in five key work areas, April to June 2019. 
 
April 2019 
 

Area Cases 
completed in 
the period 

Remaining 
cases at the end 
of the period 

KPI Maximum - cases 
at the end of the 
period  

Preserved benefits 206 1,193 750 

Aggregations 253 1,144 250 

Interfunds in 32 220 200 

Retirements 585 808 500 

Deaths 62 103 100 

 
May 2019 
 

Area Cases 
completed in 
the period  

Remaining 
cases at the end 
of the period 

KPI Maximum - cases 
at the end of the 
period 

Preserved benefits 234 1,076 800 

Aggregations 30 1,135 450 

Interfunds in 42 224 200 

Retirements 403 609 500 

Deaths 61 103 100 

 
June 2019 
 

Area Cases 
completed in 
the period  

Remaining 
cases at the end 
of the period 

KPI Maximum - cases 
at the end of the 
period 

Preserved benefits 196 976 850 

Aggregations 37 1,123 450 

Interfunds in 47 217 200 

Retirements 423 741 500 

Deaths 91 94 100 

 
The main points to note are; 
 
 

 As at 16 August 2019, there were 463 pre-April 2019 remaining 
preserved benefits cases of which 225 were at the checking stage. The 
Pension Section has been working extremely hard with Fund 
employers to clear the pre-April 2019 preserved benefit leavers in 
preparation for the triennial valuation.  

 

64



 

 There were 19 aggregations outstanding that involve non-stabilized 
employers and the actuary will be informed of these separately when 
the valuation data is submitted.  
 

 Aggregations remain high. This means scheme members have not yet 
received an option form from the Pension Section, to either combine or 
keep separate, their previous pension benefits in the Leicestershire 
Fund. This delay has no determinantal impact on members’ final 
pension benefits. Officers are developing a plan to tackle the backlog of 
aggregations over the coming months.   

 
 

 
6. GMP reconciliation 

 
HMRC has closed its window on any new submissions from Funds. 
 
As at the 8 August 2019 the Fund position was; 
 

 HMRC have 1,110 cases to reply back on. 

 The Fund has 3,875 pensioner and preserved cases to update on the 
pension administration system. 

 The Fund has 7,522 active cases to update on the pension 
administration system. 

 The Fund has completed 79,927 cases. 

 There are 122 stalemate cases where HMRC and the Pension Section 
cannot agree the figures. 

 
Whilst the GMP project is now “closed” from an HMRC perspective, (other 
than the 1,110 cases that need to be returned), the work in the Pension 
Section continues, updating the pensions administration system.  
 
In practical terms, the Pension Section has incorporated the final GMP work 
into the final data reconciliation checks, as part of the earlier migration of 
pensioner payroll from Oracle to Altair.  
 
One member of staff will be assigned to this work full time from September 
2019.   
 
 

7. System Implementation 
 
Following the completion of the system tender in partnership with Derbyshire 
County Council and the subsequent phases of the system implementation, the 
Pension Section went live with the new Altair pensioner payroll system in 
January. There have been approximately 30,000 pensioners paid each month 
through the new payroll system since January 2019. 
 
The Altair Member Self-Service (MSS) went live in January and the continued 
phased implementation for members is now complete. As at the 31 July 2019 

65



 

there were 20,056 members signed up to the new MSS system, with 812 of 
these joining in July. 
 
Immediate payments will be implemented as part of the final phase of the 
systems implementation. Immediate payments provide the scope for the 
Pension Section to make single one-off payments through the Altair system 
e.g. lump sums, death grants, refunds, transfers etc. The project had to pause 
during year-end valuation, but a scoping exercise will commence in 
September with implementation planned for November or December 2019. 
Practically the Pension Manager wishes to complete this final stage, so all 
system changes are completed by the end of the year. This will assist the 
Pensions Manager when looking at the efficiency of processes as part of a 
post system review of the Section. 
 
 
Governance Items 
 

 
8. Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) 

 
If a scheme member has a complaint that cannot be resolved informally, they 
can take this through the formal complaints process, the internal dispute 
resolution procedure (IDRP). There are two stages to IDRP, and if the 
complaint remains unresolved the scheme member can pursue it with the 
Pension Ombudsman who will ultimately determine the decision.  
 
In the period April to June 2019 there were two new IDRP stage 2 appeals. 
 
In case one; The scheme member has a complaint against their employer’s 
decision on eligibility of public service pension scheme. The Stage 2 decision 
concurs with the Stage 1 decision. The Member may choose to take their 
appeal to the Pensions Ombudsman.  
 
In case two; The scheme member, who has retired, has complained about the 
reduction to their pension benefits. The member’s previous employer has 
rejected their appeal at Stage 1, the case is at Stage 2 for review. 
 
 

9. Outstanding Transfer of Undertakings Protection of Employment (TUPE) 
 
The table below details the two outstanding TUPE transfers (pre-1 April 2019) 
as at 12 August 2019.  
 
The Fund employers are regularly reminded to contact the Pensions Manager 
as quickly as possible if they are considering TUPE transfers out and are 
made aware all pension issues should be resolved before the staff transfer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66



 

 
 

Outsourcing 
Employer 

Receiving 
Employer 

Date of 
Transfer 

Number of 
staff 
transferred 

Current Position  Staff 
written 
to 

Mercenfeld 
Academy 

MCS 
Cleaning 
and 
Maintenan
ce Ltd 
(MCS) 

4/1/18 0 
Members, 
2 Non-
members 

There has been 
considerable 
delay caused by 
one of the parties, 
but this is now 
resolved. All 
parties are now 
actively working 
on completing the 
admission 
agreement. There 
were no active 
members 
transferred. 
 

No 

Avanti 
Schools 

Govindas 
(catering 
staff) 

1/11/18 9 Members  This case has 
made very little 
progress, 
regardless of the 
attempts made by 
Officers.  
 

Yes 

 
At its last meeting the Pension Board recommended that the nine members 
affected by the Avanti Schools and Govinda’s bond dispute be written to make 
them aware of the situation.  
 
The Pensions Manager wrote to both parties in August 2019, detailing 
concerns and confirming that it would be reported to the Local Pension Board 
as a breach.  
 
The breach is due to three reasons; 
 
1. The unsigned legal admission agreement and no bond in place. 
 
2. Failure by the Pension Section to provide pensions information to the Fund 

Actuary for Govindas for the Fund valuation, caused by the fact the 
Pension Section has no data, because no legal admission is in place. 

 
3. Failure by the Pension Section to provide annual benefit statements to the 

staff that transferred over by the statutory deadline of 31 August 2019, for 
the same reason detailed in point two. The Pension Section has written to 
the nine members to inform them of this. 

 
 
 

67



 

 
Since the last report to the Local Pension Board the following cases have 
been completed and legal admission agreements signed; 
 
Tudor Grange to Ridgecrest (cleaning) 
Melton Borough Council to AXIS 
Lutterworth College to Aspens (catering) 
 
 

10. Reducing Employer Risk 
 

Employers joining the Pension Fund via admission agreements prior to 1 April 
2019 usually required a full bond to be in place. This allowed the Pension 
Fund to claim the bond value from the bond provider should the contractor fail 
to make payment of their pension costs to the Pension Fund. 

 
Since 1 April 2019 with the introduction of pass-through, the need for a full 
bond has been negated because much of the pension liability would return to 
the outsourcing employer (the letting employer) at the end of the contract. 
This has significantly reduced the bond value needed by the Fund as security, 
as there is now only a requirement for a capital cost bond to cover the 
pension strain for members aged 55 or over if they are made redundant. This 
is because the regulations provide entitlement to members of immediate 
unreduced pension benefits in this circumstance. 
 
Officers monitor the bond values and the contract dates, working closely with 
the employers to maintain the required security. However some employers do 
not maintain the bonds and allow these to lapse. Officers continue to work 
hard to reintroduce bonds as part of the overall employer risk scoring for the 
valuation. 
 
As at 6 August 2019 there are nine pre-pass-through cases identified where 
Officers are working with employers on increasing or reintroducing the 
required bonds. 
 
 

11.  Implementation of monthly posting 
 
The Pension Section continues a phased implementation of monthly postings 
as part of the Leicestershire Fund’s data improvement plan. 
 
The position as at August 2019 is attached in Appendix B, 34 Fund employers 
are providing monthly postings every month, covering 13,350 active scheme 
contributors. 
 
In the quarter, Countesthorpe and Leysland, Long Field Academy, The Mead 
Educational Trust and Learn Academy Trust have gone live.   
 
Year-end work delayed the implementation of the four groups detailed below, 
but the intention remains for these to go live in the following quarter and all be 
back dated to the 1 April 2019. 

 

68



 

 Leicester City Council 

 All Academies paid through East Midlands Shared Services 

 De Montfort University 

 Chief Constable and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
 
 
12. Year-End 
 
 The position as at 16 August 2019 is; 
 

All employers have submitted their year-end returns apart from Govindas as 
detailed previously in the report. 
 
Employer year-end queries have been resolved other than the following; 
 

 31 final pay queries for Melton Borough Council whose payroll is 
provided by Leicester City Council 

 459 queries from Leicester City Council, of which 445 of these are final 
pay queries.  

 
Excluding Govindas, should any of the remaining queries not be resolved in 
time for running of annual benefits by 31 August 2019, a second batch of 
statements will be produced in November.   
 
Any annual benefit statements not provided by the 31 August are a breach 
and will be recorded on the breaches log. Officers do not consider the 
remaining queries are a material breach because, statements have been 
provided in previous years and Leicester City Council officers are working 
hard to resolve these outstanding queries, although they are likely to be 
resolved after the deadline. 
 
Over 32,000 active member annual benefit statements will be produced by the 
31 August 2019 statutory deadline.  
 
In addition, 29,000 preserved members will receive details of the current value 
of their preserved benefit by the 31 August 2019 statutory deadline. 
 
The year-end data has been submitted to the Fund Actuary by the required 
deadline, for the Fund valuation to commence the calculation of employer 
rates, applicable from April 2020. Initial results are expected from the actuary 
in October 2019. 
 
 

  Recommendation 
 
13. It is recommended that the Board: 
 

a) reports the breach by Avanti and Govindas to The Pensions Regulator.  
 
 b) notes all other areas of the report. 
 

69



 

  Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None specific 
 
Appendices  
 
Appendix A - Quarterly Results – April to June 2019 
Appendix B – Monthly posting position as at August 2019 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe  
Pensions Manager  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6945 
Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
Declan Keegan  
Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property  
Telephone: (0116) 305 6199 
Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70

mailto:Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


 

 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
Quarter - April 2019 to June 2019

Business Process Perspective Target

This 

Quarter

Previous 

quarter
Customer Perspective - Feedback Target

This 

Quarter

Previous 

Quarter

Retirement Benefits notified to members within 

10 working days of paperwork received 92% 95% ▲ 95%

Establish members understanding of info 

provided - rated at least mainly ok or clear 95% 100% ▲ 97%

Pension payments made within 10 working days 

of receiv ing election 95% 87% ▼ 94%

Experience of dealing with Section - rated at 

least good or excellent 95% 90% ▼ 92%

Death benefits/payments sent to dependant 

within 10 working days of notification 90% 87% ▼ 97%

Establish members thoughts on the amount of 

info provided - rated as about right 92% 94% ▲ 96%

Establish the way members are treated - 

rated as polite or extremely polite 97% 100% ▲ 98%

Email response - understandable 95% 90% ▼ 93%

Good or better than target ▲ Email response - content detail 92% 92% ▲ 93%

Close to target ► Email response - timeliness 92% 94% ▲ 97%

Below target ▼

     
           

 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

A B C D E F G H I J K

APPENDIX - Position as at 15th Aug 2019

EMPLOYER
Category of 

Employer

Live on 

iConnect?
Priority Live Date Scheduled?Work Underway? Current Status

Oracle Payroll 

Number
Provider

ACTIVES 
Comments

OAK MAT Medium Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live 102 Dataplan 295 Passed over to employer

Avanti School Trust Medium Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live Dataplan 29 Passed over to employer

MOWBRAY EDUCATIONAL TRUST Medium Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live Dataplan 212 Passed over to employer

David Ross Education Trust Medium Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live Dataplan 69 Passed over to employer

Long Field Academy Medium Yes 1 Mar-19 Yes Live Dataplan 31 Joined Dataplan payroll provider March 19 >>> Er is now live

Learn Academy Trust Medium Yes 1 Apr-19 Yes Live Dataplan 252 Joined Dataplan payroll provider April 19 >>> Er is now live

The Mead Educational Trust Medium Yes 1 Apr-19 Yes Live Dataplan 343 Joined Dataplan payroll provider April 19 >>> Er is now live

ESPO EMSS Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live 31 EMSS 250 Passed over to employer

Leics Firefighters Fire Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live EMSS 492 Passed over to employer

Blaby DC Large Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live District 313 Passed over to employer

Charnwood BC Large Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live District 484 Passed over to employer

Lough University Large Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live District 1380 Passed over to employer

Loughborough College Large Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live District 334 Passed over to employer

Scraptoft PC Small Yes 1 Apr-18 Yes Live Disctrict 1 New employer - gone live>>> Handed over to employer

SLM Everyone active (NWLDC Leisure) Small No 1 Yes Employer working on the data New employer passthrough pooling. Draft report returned with feedback, await amended report.

AXIS Europe (Melton BC) Small No 1 Yes Employer working on the data New employer start date backdated to 01/10/18. Completed in June 19 

Bellrock (Tudor Grange) Small No 1 Yes Employer working on the data New employer.

Diocese of Leicester AT / LEICS ACADEMIES CHARITABLE TRUST (SAAF payroll)MAT No 1 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 209 Moved to SAAF payroll, expected to go live from 01/08/19, await draft report.

The Vines Academy Trust Medium No 1 With Employer Spec sent to employer  106 Payroll moved to Access Group 01/08/19, await draft report.

Brooksby Melton College Large No 1 With Employer Spec sent to employer District 226 Merge to SMB Group Jan 2020, info with employer, expect draft report in 2020.

Stephenson College Large No 1 With Employer Spec sent to employer District 140 Merge to SMB Group Jan 2020, info with employer, expect draft report in 2020.

The Priory AT Belvoir Academy MAT No 1 With Employer Spec sent to employer District 42 Er is looking to bring payroll in-house on 01/10/19, info with Er, await Oct report.

Ridgecrest (Tudor Grange) Small No 1 Yes With employer New employer tbc. Approved, await first draft report

SLM (Oadby and Wig) Small No 1 2 New employer

Aspens (Lutterworth AT) Small No 1 New employer joined in April 19. No i-Connect at this time as Aspen have other Ers

Govindas (Avanti Schools) Small No 1 New employer tbc. Case not completed - admission outstanding (with employer)

Aspens (Mowbray Ed Trust) Small No 1 9

Caterlink (Mead ET Primaries) Small No 1 9

Caterlink (Mead ET Sec) Small No 1 14

CSE (Tudor Grange) Small No 1 1

Leicestershire CC County Yes 2 Apr-18 Yes Live 10/023/029 EMSS 7418 Agreed the Pension Section will process, to be re-assessed after further experience.

North West Leics D C Large Yes 2 Apr-18 Yes Live District 542 Passed over to employer

Leicester City Council City No 2 Yes Employer working on the data City 8624 Expected to go live from April 19. Year End to be processed before employer can go live 

Derbys Firefighters Fire No 2 Yes Derbys 585

Notts Firefighters Fire No 2 Yes Notts 650

Harborough DC City No 2 City 189

Broughton Astley PC City No 2 City 4

East Midland Shared Services EMSS Yes 3 Apr-18 Yes Live 10 EMSS 138 Agreed the Pension Section will process, to be re-assessed after further experience.

REGENT COLLEGE EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 48 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Welland Park CC EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 104 EMSS 50 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Lutterworth High School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 113 EMSS 44 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

The Kibworth School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 105 EMSS 35 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

South Wigston High School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 111 EMSS 54 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Forest Way School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 109 EMSS 108 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

The Market Bosworth School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 117 EMSS 52 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Stafford Leys Comm Primary EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 120 EMSS 66 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Dorothy Goodman School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 119 EMSS 138 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Gartree High School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 118 EMSS 53 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Ivanhoe College EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 134 EMSS 68 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Ivanhoe U5s EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 179 EMSS 6 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Huncote Community Primary Sch EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 124 EMSS 13 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Ibstock Community College EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 150 EMSS 77 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

King Edward VII S&S College EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 149 EMSS 66 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Ashby School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 147 EMSS 103 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Ashby Hill Top Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 153 EMSS 28 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Lady Jane Grey Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 159 EMSS 26 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Castle Donington College EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 160 EMSS 22 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Queniborough CofE Primary Sch EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 163 EMSS 28 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Birkett House School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 167 EMSS 122 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Church Hill CofE Junior School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 164 EMSS 21 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

St Michael & All Angels CofE EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 166 EMSS 16 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Rendell Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 172 EMSS 25 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Barwell CofE Academy EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 170 EMSS 25 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Bottesford CofE Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 168 EMSS 17 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Thrussington CofE Primary Sch EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 161 EMSS 7 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Holywell Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 171 EMSS 29 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Mountfields Lodge School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 174 EMSS 54 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Measham CofE Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 173 EMSS 23 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

St.Peters CofE Primary Academy EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 176 EMSS 26 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Outwoods Edge Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 175 EMSS 53 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Ratby Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 181 EMSS 29 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Stonebow Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 182 EMSS 26 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Cobden Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 185 EMSS 53 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Red Hill Field Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 186 EMSS 21 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Asfordby Hill Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 188 EMSS 16 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Mercenfeld Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 193 EMSS 29 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

South Charnwood High School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 190 EMSS 34 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

The Pastures Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 194 EMSS 30 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Battling Brook Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 196 EMSS 63 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Frisby CE Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 200 EMSS 10 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Thringstone Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 195 EMSS 28 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Brocks Hill Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 197 EMSS 23 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Rothley CofE Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 180 EMSS 33 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Hastings High School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 207 EMSS 36 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Old Dalby CofE Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 199 EMSS 11 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Stanton under Bardon Primary EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 191 EMSS 9 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Hall Orchard Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 208 EMSS 52 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Kirby Muxloe Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 211 EMSS 37 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Robert Bakewell Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 212 EMSS 28 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Falcon Primary School EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 613 part City/ part EMSS20 Expected to go live from April 19. YE completed, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Loughborough CofE Primary EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 220 EMSS 25 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Townlands CofE Primary Academy EMSS No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 228 EMSS 22 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Bradgate Education Partnership MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 232 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Symphony Learning Trust MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 256 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

DISCOVERY SCHOOLS MAT MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 395 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

DOMINICS CATHOLIC AT MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 58 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Success Academy Trust MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 141 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Wigston Academies Trust MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 149 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Apollo Partnership Trust MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 135 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

LEAD ACADEMY MAT MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 125 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

LAUNDE PRIMARY MAT MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 91 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Odyssey Education Trust MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 62 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

OWLS MAT MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 121 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Inspiring Primaries Academy Trust MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 119 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

The Learning without Limits AT MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 217 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Oval Learning Partnership MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 65 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Embrace AT MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 14 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Attenborough Learning Trust MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data EMSS 131 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Ash Field Academy MAT No 3 Yes Employer working on the data 600 EMSS 101 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

LIFE Academy Trust MAT No 3 Yes With employer EMSS 165 Expected to go live from April 19. YE complete, first draft report received - to be worked as a priority.

Hinckley & Bosw'th BC Large Yes 4 Apr-18 Yes Live District 364 Handed over to employer

Countesthorpe Leysland CC Large Yes 4 Apr-19 Yes Live District 101 Expected to go live from April 19. Year End to be processed before employer can go live >> Er is now live

Oadby and Wigston BC iConnect Medium Yes 4 Apr-18 Yes Live EMSS 148 Passed over to employer

FIRE SERVICE CIVILIANS iConnect Medium Yes 4 Apr-18 Yes Live 33 EMSS 152 Passed over to employer

The Chief Constable & The OPCC Large No 4 Yes Employer working on the data District 1473 Expected to go live from April 19. Year End to be processed before employer can go live

De Montfort University Large No 4 With Employer Employer working on the data District 1446 Expected to go live from April 19. Year End to be processed before employer can go live

Groby Brookvale Large No 4 Yes Employer working on the data District 109 Expected to go live from April 19. Year End to be processed before employer can go live

LEICESTER COLLEGE Large No 4 With Employer Spec sent to employer District 640

Melton B C Medium No 5 District 159

Vol Action Leicester Medium No 5 District 24

SOUTH LEICS COLLEGE Medium No 5 District 95

Wyggeston Queen Elizabeth I Medium No 5 District 93

UPPINGHAM COMMUNITY COLLEGE Medium No 5 EPM 72

GATEWAY 6TH FORM COLLEGE Medium No 5 District 50

CASTERTON B&EC AT Medium No 5 District 61

EMH Homes Medium No 5 District 18

Capita IT City Rushey Mead Medium No 5 District 1

Capita Services ex Charnwood Medium No 5 District 28

Limehurst Academy Medium No 5 District 54

Woodbrook Vale School Medium No 5 District 43

Rawlins Academy Medium No 5 District 93

Humphrey Perkins School Medium No 5 District 43

The Martin High School Medium No 5 District 49

Redmoor Academy Medium No 5 District 57

Wreake Valley Academy Medium No 5 District 49

Lutterworth Academies Trust Medium No 5 District 83

Hinckley Academy Medium No 5 District 72

Brockington College Strictly Ed No 5 District 90

Queensmead Primary Academy Medium No 5 District 44

Capita IT City of Leicester Medium No 5 District 1

Capita IT Judgmeadow CC Medium No 5 District 1

Quadron Services Medium No 5 District 17

73

ctuohy
Text Box
Appendix B



145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207

208

209

210

211

A B C D E F G H I J K

G4S (Constabulary) Medium No 5 G4S 17

Turning Point (City Council) Medium No 5 District 24

Turning Point (County Council) Medium No 5 District 17

G4S (City Council) Medium No 5 G4S 12

Rutland CC Rutland No 6 District 478

EPM - Rutland CC Rutland/EPM No 6 With Employer Spec sent to employer EPM inc in RutlandEmployer working on report with macro, a meeting is penciled in for Nov 19. Aim to go live April 2020.

The  Rutland & District Schools' Federation MAT No 7 District 99

Brooke Hill Academy Trust MAT No 7 District 36

The Blessed Cyprian MAT MAT No 7 District 146

BEACON ACADEMY MAT MAT No 7 District 53

St Gilberts of Sempringham MAT No 7 District 9

The Midland Academies Trust MAT No 7 District 25

Heighington Millfield Community Academy Trust (Lincs)MAT No 7 District 17

Nova Ed Trust (Melton Vale) MAT No 7 District 20

Tudor Grange Academies Trust MAT No 7 Mixed 125

BEAUCHAMP LIONHEART MAT MAT No 7 Mixed 262 County part expected to go live from April 19, disctrict part not to go live. Expected to go live from April 19. 

The Rutland Learning Trust MAT No 7 Mixed 72

CORPUS CHRISTI MAT Strictly Ed No 7 Strictly Ed 123

Mountsorrel PC Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 1 Passed over to employer

ASHBY WOULDS TOWN COUNCIL Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 1 Passed over to employer

MARKET BOSWORTH PARISH COUNCIL Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 1 Passed over to employer

Leics Forest East PC Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 2 Passed over to employer

GLEN PARVA PARISH COUNCIL Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 3 Passed over to employer

Melton Learning Hub Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 3 Passed over to employer

Barwell Parish Council Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 3 Passed over to employer

LUTTERWORTH T C Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 5 Passed over to employer

Enderby Parish Council Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 5 Passed over to employer

Prospects Services Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live District 11 Passed over to employer

BRAUNSTONE TOWN COUNCIL iConnect Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live 15 Agreed the Pension Section will process for now.

THURMASTON PARISH COUNCIL iConnect Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live 12 Agreed the Pension Section will process for now.

COUNTESTHORPE PC iConnect Small Yes 8 Apr-18 Yes Live 10 Passed over to employer

Herrick Primary School City No 8 Yes With employer Judicium inc in City Expected to go live from April 19.

Solo Service Group Small No 8 District 10 New employer joined Aug 19. No i-Connect at this time, to be done as one at a later date.

Kirby Muxloe PC Small No 8 District 1

SLM (Blaby DC) Small No 8 District 1

BARROW UPON SOAR PC Small No 8 District 1

Bagworth & Thornton PC Small No 8 District 1

Oakthorpe, D & A PC Small No 8 District 1

East Goscote Parish Council Small No 8 District 1

Twycross Parish Council Small No 8 District 1

CSE Ltd Small No 8 District 1

Future Cleaning Services Small No 8 District 1

SILEBY PARISH COUNCIL Small No 8 District 2

Spire Homes Limited Small No 8 District 2

East West Community Centre Ltd Small No 8 District 2

G Purchase Construction LTD Small No 8 District 2

Groby Parish Council Small No 8 District 2

Pinnacle Group Small No 8 District 2

MCS Cleaning Small No 8 District 2

Bradgate Park Trust Small No 8 District 3

Thurcaston & Cropston PC Small No 8 District 3

Rushcliffe Care Ltd Small No 8 District 5

Seven Locks Housing Small No 8 District 5

Aspens (City Crown Hills) Small No 8 District 5

SHEPSHED PARISH COUNCIL Small No 8 District 6

Whetstone PC Small No 8 District 6

Fusion Lifestyle Small No 8 District 6

Caterlink (Mowbray Ed Trust) Small No 8 District 6

ASHBY TOWN COUNCIL Small No 8 District 7

ANSTEY PARISH COUNCIL Small No 8 District 7

A B M Catering Ltd Small No 8 District 7

Stephenson Studio School Small No 8 District 7

Blaby Parish Council Small No 8 District 8

Chartwells Small No 8 District 8

SYSTON TOWN COUNCIL Small No 8 District 10

Caterlink (Fulhurst CC) Small No 8 District 10

Ryhall CE Academy Strictly Ed No 8 District 11

74



 

 

  
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD  
 

16 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION – CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS  
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of relevant issues relating to 
administration of the Leicestershire Pension Fund (the Fund). 

 
 Background 
 
2. The Pensions Section is responsible for the administration of Local 

Government Pension Scheme benefits of the Leicestershire Pension Fund’s 
98,000 members. 

 
 Current Developments 
 
3.  McCloud 
 
 Following Lord Hutton’s review in 2011 on the cost effectiveness and fairness 

of public sector pensions, changes were made in 2014 and 2015 to public 
sector pension schemes rules that effectively moved all schemes members 
from final salary pension arrangements to career average revalued earnings 
(CARE) benefits. In some schemes all members moved at once (e.g. the 
LGPS on the 1 April 2014) while in other schemes this was via a taper date 
(e.g. Fire-fighters from 1 April 2015 onwards). Older scheme members, 
generally those within 10 years of retirement, were afforded additional 
protection providing them the greater of either final salary benefits or CARE 
benefits.    

  
The protection afforded to older scheme members was challenged by Mr 
McCloud as being age discriminatory and after various legal stages in the 
process, won his appeal. Government then chose to challenge the outcome of 
the appeal, however in July 2019 Government lost its right of appeal.  
 

 The ruling impacts on all public-sector pension schemes, but how this will be 
resolved and change scheme member’s pension benefits, is currently 
unknown. 

75 Agenda Item 9



 

 
The impact of the McCloud case is estimated to be in the region of an 
increased cost to public service pensions of £4 billion per annum. There is 
likely to be a significant administration effort from this ruling, to check 
members are no worse off.  
 
The Leicestershire Fund has been working with the Fund actuary and will 
consider the financial impact of McCloud on employer rates for the 31 March 
2019 valuation.   

 
 Once more is known on the impact to scheme members benefits a further 

report will be presented to the Board.  
 

4. Good Governance Project (previously known as the separation project) 
 
In 2015, the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) commissioned KPMG to 
undertake a project to examine the issues and challenges of separating the 
pension’s functions of LGPS administering authorities from their host 
authorities. SAB’s concern was to ensure there is no conflict of interest 
between the administering authority and the interest of the pension fund. 
 
Earlier this year the SAB commissioned Hymans Robertson was set up to see 
how the recommendations that emerged from the exercise undertaken in 
2015, could be made to work in practice. This project became known as the 
Good Governance Project. 
 
On the 31 July 2019 the Good Governance report was published, attached as 
an appendix to this report. The report includes comments from a wide variety 
of interested parties covering, Pension Fund Officers, 151 Officers and Trade 
Unions.  
 
The report covered four possible models to improve governance in the LGPS. 
These were; 
 

Model 1: Improved practice 
Introduce guidance or amendments to LGPS Regulations 2013 to 
enhance the existing arrangements by increasing the 
independence of the management of the fund and clarifying the 
standards expected in key areas. 
 

  Model 2: Greater ring-fencing of the LGPS within existing structures 
Greater separation of pension fund management from the host 
authority, including budgets, resourcing and pay policies. 

 
  Model 3: Form a Joint Committee (JC)  

Responsibility for all LGPS functions delegated to a JC comprising 
the administering authority and non-administering authorities in the 
fund. Inter-authority agreement (IAA) makes JC responsible for 
recommending budget, resourcing and pay policies. 
 

76



 

Model 4: New local authority body 
An alternative single purpose legal entity that would retain local 
democratic accountability and be subject to Local Government Act 
provisions. 

 
Some of the key findings from the report include; 
 

 Model 2 was the favoured option, from the engagement activity. This 
aligns with previous views from Leicestershire Fund Officers.  

 

 A great deal of good practice takes place already. 
 

 Pension administration stays within the host authority. 
 

The next stages are for the SAB to consider the results of the report and to 
specifically look at the detailed proposals included in the report to decide if 
they wish to implement these. 
 
Officers expect these proposals to be considered and possibly consulted on 
before implementation. However, Officers will start considering areas where 
the Fund needs to strengthen its governance arrangements in preparation of 
the proposals. 
 
The Board will receive an update on the final SAB decision once available. 
 

5.  Recommendation 
 
 It is recommended that the Pension Board note the report. 
 
  Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 

 
Appendix 

 
Appendix – Good Governance Report 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe – Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945 
 
Declan Keegan – Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property - 
telephone (0116) 305 6199 
      

77



This page is intentionally left blank



July 2019

Good governance  
in the LGPS

79



2 Good governance in the LGPS

Addressee
This report is addressed to our client, the Scheme Advisory Board for the Local Government Pension Scheme 
 in England and Wales (SAB).

This Report has been prepared for the benefit of our client, the SAB.  As this Report has not been prepared 
for a third party, no reliance by any third party may be placed on the Report. It follows that there is no duty or 
liability by Hymans Robertson LLP (or its members, partners, officers, employees and agents) to any party other 
than the SAB. If this report is shared with any third party, it must be shared in its entirety.

Thanks to contributors
We are indebted to all those who responded to the survey and engaged in interviews and events that helped 
inform this report.  We are grateful to you for being generous with your time and expertise, for your confidence 
in sharing your experiences openly and for responding so constructively and creatively. 

Your views on current best practice, areas for improvement and creative and practical ideas for further 
strengthening governance in the LGPS are reflected in the proposals we present to SAB here. 

We hope that your contribution will help further strengthen and future-proof governance in the LGPS.

80



July 2019 i

Contents

Authors

Catherine McFadyen
Head of LGPS Actuarial, 

Benefits and Governance
catherine.mcfadyen@hymans.co.uk

John Wright
Head of Public Sector
john.wright@hymans.co.uk

Ian Colvin
Head of Benefits Consulting

ian.colvin@hymans.co.uk

Steven Law
Actuary

steven.law@hymans.co.uk

Executive summary .................................................................................................................................................................................................................1

1.  Introduction ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................3

2.  Process ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................4

3.  Survey results .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................6

4.  Survey themes .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................9

5.  Examples of best practice .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 13

6.  Proposals ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 14

Appendix A: Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey ............................................................................................................. 22

Appendix B: Abbreviations ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 29

81



1 Good governance in the LGPS

Governance in the LGPS is 
evolving to accommodate 
new developments in the last 
decade, including oversight 
by The Pensions Regulator, 
introduction of Local 
Pension Boards, increasing 
complexity in scheme benefits 
and administration, local 
government funding cuts and 
pooling of LGPS investments 
which has changed the role of 
local pensions committees and 
the way LGPS administering 
authorities work with one 
another.

The SAB commissioned this report to examine 
the effectiveness of current LGPS governance 
models and to consider alternatives or 
enhancements to existing models which can 
strengthen LGPS governance going forward. 

Given the unique nature of the LGPS, 
guaranteed by administering authorities and 
funded to a large degree by tax-payers, a 
criterion specified by SAB is that any models 
considered must maintain strong links to local 
democratic accountability.  

Executive summary

Process
We engaged extensively with all stakeholder 
groups and all fund types via an online survey 
(140 respondents), one-to-one conversations 
through interviews and seminars  
(153 respondents), speaking engagements, 
a workshop with the Association of Local 
Authority Treasurers (ALATS), and discussion 
with the CIPFA Pensions Panel and the 
Society of County Treasurers (SCT). 

We focussed on the following criteria 
for assessing governance arrangements; 
Standards, Consistency, Representation, 
Conflict Management, Clarity of Roles and 
Responsibilities and Cost.  We were asked by 
SAB to consider how existing and alternative 
governance models fared against these 
criteria. 

We considered four governance models:

• Model 1: improved practice

• Model 2: Model 1 plus greater ring-fencing

• Model 3: joint committee;  and 

• Model 4: separate Local Authority body.  

These models were described in qualitative 
terms with the recognition that  some of the 
characteristics attributed to one model could 
also be replicated in another model and that 
the final solution may draw on the features of 
more than one model.

Results and themes from 
survey responses
The online survey responses indicated a 
first preference for governance Model 2 
(greater ring-fencing) followed by support for 
Model 1 (improved practice).  Respondents 
recognised that governance models along 
these lines may need independent monitoring 
to add bite and ensure consistency of 
application.  >>

one-to-one 
conversations

discussions with 
CIFPA and SCT

153 attendees at 
interviews and seminars

140 respondents  
to our online survey

82



July 2019 2

Model 2 was also the clear preference in additional surveys at the 
PLSA conference in May* and other events (*Models 1 and 2 between 
them had more than 70% support). 

Few respondents supported Model 3 (joint committee) citing 
no benefits over existing arrangements and considerable added 
complexity as the main reasons.  Some respondents could see value 
in Model 4 (separate LA body), including one trade union for whom 
a version of this was the favoured model.  However, for most this 
value was outweighed by concern about weakening relationships 
with councils who are key sponsors of the scheme and a belief that 
establishing this model would incur disproportionate cost to any 
benefits that could be delivered.

Through the written responses, interviews and other engagement, 
many stakeholders pointed out that their existing models provided 
many of the features and benefits of Models 1 and 2.  Many had found 
good solutions to some of the challenges faced within the current 
structure and welcomed the opportunity to share these with peers 
and learn from others’ experiences. This process enabled us to identify

i. Some best practice within current governance arrangements that 
is delivering good outcomes and may have potential for wider 
application across the LGPS; and 

ii. Additional ideas for further strengthening governance within the 
current regulatory framework.  

We have included these in the report.

Conclusions
• It is clear from survey responses that governance structure is not 

the only determinant of good governance.  Funds with similar 
governance models deliver different results and good examples 
exist across a range of different set ups. 

• Survey respondents were also clear that establishment of new 
bodies is not required, although this should be facilitated for funds 
who wish to pursue other arrangements voluntarily. Instead, the 
focus should be on greater specification of required governance 
outcomes from within the existing structures, and a process to hold 
funds to account for this.

• Respondents favour developing a set of standards that all funds 
are required to achieve, drawing on current best practice and not 
imposing disproportionate burden on administering authorities or 
disrupting current practices that deliver good outcomes already.

• Respondents emphasised that independent review is needed to 
ensure consistency in application of standards.

Key proposals

‘Outcomes-based’ approach to LGPS 
governance with minimum standards 
rather than a prescribed governance 
model.

Critical features of the ‘outcomes-
based’ model should include:  
(a) robust conflict management 
including clarity on roles and 
responsibilities for decision-making;   
(b) assurance on sufficiency of 
administration and other resources 
(quantity and competency) and 
appropriate budget;  
(c) explanation of policy on employer 
and scheme member engagement and 
representation in governance; and  
(d) regular independent review of 
governance – this should be based on 
an enhanced governance compliance 
statement which should explain how 
the required outcomes are delivered.

Enhanced training requirements for 
s151s and s101 committee members 
(requirements for s101 should be on a 
par with LPB members).

Update relevant guidance and better 
sign-posting. This should include 
2014 CIPFA guidance for s151s on LGPS 
responsibilities and 2008 statutory 
guidance on governance compliance 
statements. This guidance  
pre-dates both TPR involvement in 
LGPS oversight, local pension boards 
and LGPS investment pooling.

We also set out suggested actions for 
implementing these proposals if agreed by 
SAB. 

1

2

3

4

Respondents favour developing a set of standards 
that all funds are required to achieve...

83



3 Good governance in the LGPS

Context, purpose and scope
Governance in the LGPS is evolving to 
accommodate new developments in the last 
decade, including oversight by The Pensions 
Regulator, introduction of Local Pension 
Boards, increasing complexity in the scheme 
benefits and administration, local government 
funding cuts and pooling of LGPS investments 
which has changed the role of local pensions 
committees and the way LGPS administering 
authorities work with one another.

The purpose of the survey, undertaken 
for SAB, was to identify ways of further 
strengthening LGPS governance in the face 
of these new challenges, setting a bar for 
standards that all funds should achieve, 
drawing on current best practice and not 
imposing additional unnecessary burden on 
administering authorities or disrupting current 
practices that deliver good outcomes already.

Given the unique nature of the LGPS, 
guaranteed and funded to a large degree 
by council tax-payers, a critical condition 
specified by the SAB was that any proposals 
must maintain strong links to local democratic 
accountability.  

1.  Introduction

In developing the proposals made in this 
report, we consulted with many LGPS 
stakeholders.  As expected, there were 
many different views and suggestions made 
to improve the governance arrangements in 
the LGPS.  We have reflected many of these 
views in the body of the report, particularly 
where a view or proposal was articulated 
by several parties, and where possible we 
have indicated why some of these views or 
suggestions have not been taken forward in 
the final proposals.  The proposals submitted 
to SAB in this report are those we believe 
would deliver improved governance at 
proportionate cost and reflect a consensus 
across most stakeholders.

We recognise that there are a small number 
of administering authorities (such as London 
Pensions Fund Authority and the Environment 
Agency) with unique arrangements. While 
we engaged with both of these funds 
to understand their perspectives and 
approaches to governance we recognise that  
some of the potential governance models as 
set out in the survey may not be appropriate, 
or even possible, for these bodies.  

Governance in  
the LGPS is 
evolving to 
accommodate 
developments  
in the last 
decade...

84



July 2019 4

The aim of the work we have undertaken was 
to deliver proposals to the Scheme Advisory 
Board that:

• Identify and address any actual or 
perceived issues within current LGPS 
governance arrangements, including 
conflicts for LGPS host authorities;

• Are based on a wide consultation to 
increase the likelihood of stakeholder 
support;

• Are proportionate and can be readily 
implemented; and

• Maintain local democratic accountability.

2.  Process

Process
The process we used is described below:

1. Fact-find phase: We carried out 
interviews based on an open-scripted 
questionnaire with a diverse range of 
experienced officers, elected members 
and other stakeholders in order to identify 
any issues within current LGPS governance 
arrangements.  The outcome and 
conclusions were shared with SAB in order 
to assist in developing the governance 
models which were consulted on in the 
online survey.

2. Online survey: We conducted a wider 
consultation in the form of an online survey 
on the governance models identified by 
SAB.  Input was sought from all relevant 
parties including s151 officers, s151 officers 
of non-administering authorities, pension 
fund officers, elected members, pension 
board members including scheme 
member and employer representatives 
as well as other interested parties and 
organisations.  

3. Other engagement activities: In addition 
to the survey, we engaged stakeholders 
through other activities such as interviews, 
seminars and speaking events to capture 
as wide a view as possible.    

4. Report: This report sets out the outcomes 
of our consultation activities including 
a full analysis of the key issues and 
proposals for addressing these issues, 
including commentary on any required 
legislative or guidance changes were these 
would realise significant benefits.     

85



5 Good governance in the LGPS

Who we consulted
In conducting our wider consultation, we 
engaged directly with all stakeholder groups 
and all fund types via:

• Online surveys which were sent to all 
relevant contacts on SAB’s and Hymans 
Robertson’s databases.  These were also 
sent to any individual or organisation that 
requested them out with the initial mailing 
lists.  In total, 140 responses were received 
to our online surveys by the closing date.  

• One-to-one interviews were carried 
out with individuals or organisations by 
request or where further clarification 
of online responses were sought.  
Organisations included PSAA, NAO, 
CIPFA, SLT, Unite and Unison.

• Some organisations, such as CIPFA 
and PIRC, provided their own written 
submissions.

2.  Process (continued)

• Three seminars were held with open 
invitations to collate feedback from larger 
group.    

There are 87 1 funds within the LGPS in 
England and Wales.  We had direct feedback 
from representatives at 76 of these split 
across the various designations used by SAB 
in their annual report (see Table 1).

We engaged with a wide variety of 
stakeholders as set out in Chart 1 below.

In addition, we have presented and collected 
feedback at key events over the period 
including the PLSA conference, CIPFA 
Pensions Panel, meetings of the Society 
of County Treasurers, Society of Welsh 
Treasurers and ALATS. Our findings and 
proposals reflect feedback from all of these. 

Table 1: Respondents from LGPS funds in England and Wales, as designated by SAB annual report

Interaction through
Universe Responses Survey Interview

Unitary Authorities 12 11 24 17
London Boroughs 31 22 20 25
County Councils 27 26 64 55
Welsh Funds 8 8 15 14
Metropolitan Boroughs 6 6 8 17
Other 3 3 2 3
Independent responses   7 22
TOTAL 87 76 140 153

Chart 1: Stakeholders we engaged

1  Excluding admission body funds, passenger transport funds and the environment agency closed fund. 

2  Including trade union representatives.

0

Other interested parties 2

Pensions Board members

Committee Chairs

Employers (non-administering authority)

Pension Fund Officers

s151 Officers

30 60 90 120 150

31

50

139

47

15

11

86



July 2019 6

The online survey issued as part of the 
consultation is set out in Appendix A.   
We sought views on four potential 
governance models SAB chose to consult on.  
All were assessed by respondents against 
criteria agreed with SAB.  This was done 
through a combination of numerical scoring 
and free form commentary.

A summary of the numerical scores are set 
out below for each of the four structures:

• Model 1 (Improved practice) 
Introduce guidance or amendments to 
the LGPS Regulations to enhance the 
existing arrangements by increasing the 
independence of the management of 
the fund and clarifying the standards 
expected in key areas.

• Model 2 (Greater ringfencing) 
Clearer ringfencing of pension fund 
management from the host authority, 
including budgets, resourcing and pay 
policies.

• Model 3 (Joint committee) Responsibility 
for all LGPS functions delegated to a joint 
committee comprising the administering 
authority and non-administering 
authorities in the fund.  Inter-authority 
agreement (IAA) makes joint committee 
responsible for recommending budget, 
resourcing and pay policies.

• Model 4 (New Local Authority Body) 
An alternative single purpose legal entity 
that would retain local democratic 
accountability and be subject to Local 
Government Act 1972 provisions.

3.  Survey results

In carrying out the survey, respondents were asked whether each of 
the models shown would have a positive or negative impact on each of 
the following criteria: 

1 Standards

The model enables funds to meet good 
standards of governance across all areas 
of statutory responsibility including TPR 
requirements.

2 Clarity
The model delivers clarity of 
accountability and responsibility for each 
relevant role.

3 Conflict

The model minimises conflicts between 
the pension function and the host local 
authority, including but not limited to s151 
officer conflicts (in operational areas such 
as budgets, resourcing, recruitment and 
pay policies and in strategic areas such as 
funding and investment policy).

4 Consistency

The model minimises dependence on 
the professionalism of individuals and 
existing relationships to deliver statutory 
responsibilities.

5 Representation

The model allows for appropriate 
involvement in decision-making for key 
stakeholders (including administering 
authority, non-administering authorities, 
other employer and member 
representatives).

6 Cost
The cost of implementing and running the 
model is likely to be worthwhile versus 
benefits delivered.

87



7 Good governance in the LGPS

2.  Survey results (continued)

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model allows for appropriate involvement in
decision-making for key stakeholder

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model enables funds to meet the required standards 

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model delivers clarity of accountability 
and responsibility for each relevant role

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model minimises conflicts between the
pension function and the host local authority

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

The following charts summarise the extent to which respondents agreed that each model delivered against the six 
criteria.  The further to the right the line appears, the more strongly respondents favoured the model against the criteria.

Comments on survey responses
• Across all questions and criteria, 

respondents gave the highest scores to 
Model 2, followed closely by Model 1.

• Model 4 scored reasonably well on 
questions relating to criteria 1 to 4.  
A minority of respondents supported this 
model or some variation on it. For example, 
one of the trade unions favoured a variant 
of Model 4 with a changed role for local 
councillors because they believe that it 
could reduce potential governance conflicts 
they see in the role of local councillors 
who must act in the best interests of 
scheme members and at the same 
time in the interests of local tax-payers. 
However, the majority of respondents 
raised concerns over the question of 
appropriate involvement in decision making. 
These respondents felt that democratic 
accountability may be weakened in this 
model or the influence of the lead local 
authority, who is the guarantor of last resort 
for the fund, would be diluted. The model 
also scored very poorly on cost or value 
for money with a majority of respondents 
feeling that the model would be very 
expensive and disruptive  
to implement.

• Model 3 received weakest support overall.  
Respondents felt that the model would be 
complex to set up and manage and would 
deliver no perceived improvements in 
governance outcomes.

• The sentiment reflected within the 
commentary in the responses was also 
strongly in favour of Models 1 and 2, with 
many respondents identifying features of 
Models 1 and 2 that are already delivered in 
their current structure.

• However, responses also recognised 
that in order to achieve governance 
improvements through Models 1 and 2, 
the governance regime needs to include 
independent monitoring or review of local 
fund arrangements to ensure that everyone 
attains a minimum standard and that 
those beyond that level seek continuous 
improvement.

88



July 2019 8

2.  Survey results (continued)

Additional survey data
In addition to the online survey, we 
asked attendees at our PLSA session and 
other events a set of questions on their 
preferences.

Around 70% of respondents favoured 
Models 1 or 2.  

Very similar results (from a smaller sample 
size) were recorded at our webinar.

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model minimises dependence on professionalism and
relationships to deliver statutory responsibilities

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

Which structural governance model do you prefer 
from the four models discussed?

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

24%

47%

12%

17%

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

Which structural governance model do you prefer 
from the four models discussed?

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

20%

50%

10%

20%

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The cost of implementing and running the model is 
likely to be worthwhile versus benefits delivered

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

PLSA

Webinar

Across all questions and 
criteria, respondents gave 
the highest scores to Model 2, 
followed closely by Model 1.

89



9 Good governance in the LGPS

 ô Standards

1. There was an almost unanimous view that there should not be a 
single model of LGPS governance imposed on all funds.

2. The view ‘one size does not fit all’ was frequently stated by 
respondents from all categories of respondent. 

3. There was a strong view from respondents that members of 
pension committees should be mandated to have the same level of 
training as local pension board members. 

4. A small minority expressed the view that this would lead to 
problems getting elected members to sit on pension committees. 

5. The fact that pension committee members can change due 
to elections or being moved around can cause problems with 
consistency and maintaining knowledge and skills.

“It is a perversion that LPB members require a higher 
degree of training than elected members.” 
Officer, LB

“[The] biggest issue is stability at elected member level.   
Too much turnover.” 
Officer, LB

6. Several respondents said that guidance from several sources 
caused confusion as to which was current, which was relevant 
and what are ‘musts’ (mandatory) and ‘shoulds’ (guidance or best 
practice): 

“Funds are currently pulled in too many directions by lots 
of guidance – CIPFA, SAB, TPA etc.”
Officer, CC

“[Guidance from numerous sources] muddies the waters 
between what is statutory guidance and what isn’t.”
Independent Advisor

7. The idea of extending the existing concept of peer challenge 
to include pensions was mentioned by some respondents. 
(Committee Chair CC, s151 CC and officers Met)

The following section reflects some 
of the views raised during various 
conversations.  Direct quotations reflect 
a specific point made by an individual 
which we judged to be representative 
of views of a number of respondents.  
Comments not in quotations are our 
expression of views expressed by a 
significant number of respondents. 

Key:

CC County Council 
Met Metropolitan
LB London Borough
TU Trade Union

4.  Survey themes

90



July 2019 10

 ô Clarity of decision-making

1. Some respondents felt that there was already a 
clear framework around decision making within their 
authority but other reported that there was very little 
clarity around where key decisions were made.

2. Two funds suggested that it was unclear who was 
responsible for decisions around outsourcing the 
administration function; was it the pension committee, 
s151 officer, full council?

3. One fund reported it very difficult for the council’s 
constitution to be updated - the updates required for 
pooling have still not been made.

4. Greater clarity around decision-making is a good idea: 
“Some decision-making conventions are lost  
in the mists of time.” 
Officer, CC

 ô Consistency

1. Commentary on Models 1 and 2 recognised that some 
sort of monitoring, enforcement or independent review 
would be needed to ensure that the required standards 
and governance outcomes are delivered. 

2. There was strong support for the professionalism of 
s151 officers and the role they play.  

3. A few respondents noted that the work pressures on 
s151 officers is greater than ever before and worried 
about their scope to devote the necessary time to the 
fund.

“My s151 is incredibly supportive and helpful but 
I accept s151s at other funds are not as engaged or 
are engaged in the ‘wrong way’”. 
Officer, CC

“Separation would actually push s151s away 
from the fund, leading to less responsibility and 
engagement with the fund, leading in turn to 
less expertise and worse decisions.  Better to get 
s151s more closely involved so they understand 
the requirements of the LGPS and make better 
decisions.” 
Officer, CC

4. A number of respondents stated that “Statutory/
fiduciary duty clarity would be useful.” 

91



11 Good governance in the LGPS

4.  Survey themes (continued)

 ô Budgets and resourcing

1. There was a range of approaches when it came to 
budget setting.  In some instances, the budget available 
to the pension fund was determined as part of the 
wider council budget setting process with little or 
no input from pension officers and no role for the 
pension committee.  Other funds reported that budget 
setting and in-year management of the budget was the 
responsibility of pension officers and that the local 
authority’s s151 was ‘kept informed’.  

“It hadn’t occurred to me that the [pension] 
committee could get involved with budget 
setting.  Guidance on that would be good.”
Officer, LB

“Potential problems include transparency in 
the AA of its costs.  Recharges of time.  Costs 
recovered by the AA via the PF.” 
LPB Chair

2. There was also a split in terms of whether funds had the 
ability to set their own staffing or whether they were 
subject to recruitment freezes or downsizing exercises 
that apply to the main council. 

 
“[There should be] resourcing such that there 
is the quality and competence to deliver their 
statutory duties” 
s151, CC

One s151 expressed “disbelief that blanket hiring 
bans and pay policies affected the pensions 
section.  s151’s should be flexible enough to 
understand how to ‘spend’ resources.  If they 
need to pay differently for pensions to get the 
right experience/quality.” 
s151, CC

When it comes to budgeting and workplans  
“...the s101 committee decides including requests 
for extra resource if required.” 
Chair of Committee. CC

 ô Conflicts

1. Most respondents felt that there was 
acknowledgement of the potential conflict faced by 
elected members and officers and that those potential 
conflicts were managed well. 

2. However, it was not unusual for respondents to suggest 
that there needed to be better distinction between the 
employer and administering authority role.

“No one in the council understands the difference 
between the ‘council’ function and the ‘pension’ 
function.”
 Officer, LB

“The make-up of panel/committees is not 
working – too much political interference.” 
LPB Chair

On conflicts:  
“I don’t see abuses.  The ability is  
there for there to be abuse but it doesn’t happen.” 
Officer, CC

“LGPS is full of conflict, s101 committees are 
beholden to the council who are mainly focused 
on council tax-payers.” 
TU

3. Some pointed out that concentrating on conflicts 
missed some of the advantages of LGPS funds being 
part of local authorities.

“[This review] should address the many 
advantages and benefits of working for a large, 
well-run and modern council. 
s151 CC

“[s151] role involves tensions, not conflicts.  
Tension can’t always be seen as a bad thing.” 
Officers, Met

92



July 2019 12

4.  Survey themes (continued)

 ô Representation

1. Most respondents felt that there was a role for 
some sort of scheme member presence on pension 
committees. although there was a difference of 
opinion about whether this should be a voting role 
or an observer role.  A number of funds suggested 
that the scheme member role should not be limited 
to trade union representative.  All agreed that the 
majority representation must lie with the administering 
authority. 

“Less than 50% of our members are in a union.” 
s151, CC

“Representation is key – members must  
have a say” 
TU

“Other employers reps and member reps should 
have voting rights [on the committee]. That’s 
right and should happen.” 
Chair of Committee, CC

“We are warm towards the idea of an 
independent advisor/trustee who sits on 
committees.” 
s151, CC

“We want to improve things for our members 
in terms of governance, transparency and 
representation.” 
TU

2. There were strong views on both sides about the value 
that local pension boards bring.  Some feeling that they 
increased bureaucracy without adding value while for 
others they had become a useful part of the fund’s 
governance arrangements.

“I welcome the involvement of the Pension Board 
it adds value, second opinion.” 
Chair Committee, CC

One respondent believed that joint committee and 
local pension boards “give scheme members and 
other employers a voice and avoids duplication.” 
s151, CC

“Many administering authorities see boards as 
threats rather than opportunities. There are still 
boards who are dictated to. Need administering 
authorities to release tight control.” 
Chair of LPB

3. There were a range of practices in how funds engaged 
with employers:

“As s151 of a non-admin authority, I didn’t feel 
engaged in the pension fund, it was something 
that was dictated to me every few years.” 
s151 speaking of their time in a non administering authority

“Employer liaison is tricky as your participating 
employers often don’t see it as a priority.” 
s151, CC

93



13 Good governance in the LGPS

Regular governance reviews
A number of funds confirmed that they 
use internal audit to provide assurance on 
administration and governance matters.  
Some reported an annual programme of 
work with different aspects of delivery being 
assessed each time.

Other funds had commissioned external 
governance reviews in order to receive an 
independent assessment of their current 
arrangements. 

Committee membership  
and effectiveness  
A large number of funds stated that they 
required pension committee members to 
attain the same level of knowledge and 
expertise as local pension board members.  
This was achieved through training policies 
which set out clearly how the fund will deliver 
training and assess its effectiveness. 

One fund reported how members of the 
pension committee are required to sign a 
declaration stating that they will act in the 
interests of the fund and not be influenced 
by party political matters. One view is that 
councils should waive the requirement for 
political representation on committees to 
allow the most appropriate members to 
sit, rather than allocate places according to 
political party.

Most funds have some sort of scheme 
member representation on pension 
committees and a small number allow 
scheme member representatives to vote.

It was apparent during our conversations that many funds exhibited excellent 
examples of good governance but that practices across funds were not consistent.  
This section captures some of the examples of best practice that we identified.

5.  Examples of current best practice

Independence
A number of funds reported that there was a clear understanding of, 
and separation between, the functions of the pension fund and the 
local authority which recognised the specialist nature of the LGPS.  
This was typically achieved through one or more of the following 
features:

• A dedicated Head of Pensions role which was at an appropriately 
senior level within the authority’s structure.

• A recognition by elected members serving on the pension 
committee that, when carrying fund specific business, they were 
acting on behalf of scheme members and all of the employers in 
the fund, not simply their own local authority.

• Independent business planning and resourcing decisions made by 
pension fund officers and signed off by the pension committee 
and s151.  This allows the pension fund to plan and resource 
appropriately to deliver its strategic objectives.

• Pension fund not subject to same recruitment freezes or 
restructuring exercises applied at a council level.  Some funds 
reported using market supplements to attract appropriately skilled 
staff, where a strong business case could be made.

Focus on quality of service to scheme members
Some funds were prepared to ‘go the extra mile’ in terms of the 
quality of service delivered to scheme members.  This might involve 
encouraging face-to-face interaction between pensions staff and 
scheme members (particularly when considering complex or emotive 
matters), producing a range of communications aimed at active, 
deferred and pensioner members or holding annual member meetings 
to raise awareness of current issues. 

94



July 2019 14

The proposals we set out for consideration by SAB are informed by feedback from stakeholders. Many are things which 
well-run funds already do. 

• Table 1 shows the proposals in summary. 

• Table 2 sets out the rationale for each proposal and, if SAB agrees with proposals, suggested actions to implement.

6.  Proposals

Table 1: Summary of proposals

1 ‘Outcomes-based’ approach to LGPS governance with minimum standards rather than a prescribed 
governance structure.

2 Critical features of the ‘outcomes-based’ model to include:

a. Robust conflict management including clarity on roles and responsibilities for decision making.

b. Assurance on sufficiency of administration and other resources (quantity and competency) and appropriate budget.

c. Explanation of policy on employer and scheme member engagement and representation in governance. 

d. Regular independent review of governance - this should be based on an enhanced governance compliance 
statement which should explain how the required outcomes are delivered.

3 Enhanced training requirements for s151s and s101 committee members (requirements for s101 should be  
on a par with LPB members).

4 Update relevant guidance and better sign-posting.

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions

Proposal Why Suggested actions

1 ‘Outcomes-based’ approach 
to LGPS governance rather than a 
prescribed governance structure.

We observe (and the survey 
evidences) that different 
administering authorities with 
the same governance structure 
can have different outcomes in 
terms of quality and standards of 
governance. All the governance 
models in the SAB survey can 
deliver good or bad governance 
outcomes. Focussing on the 
desirable traits and outcomes 
expected of LGPS governance 
will enhance governance in a 
more reliable and cost-effective 
manner than prescribed changes in 
structure.

Further, we do not believe it is 
appropriate to impose a ‘one size 
fits all’ approach.

i. SAB should consult on: 

• Desirable features and 
attributes of LGPS governance 
arrangements; 

• The outcomes governance 
arrangements should be 
expected to deliver; and 

• How each administering 
authority might evidence that its 
own governance model displays 
the required attributes. 

ii. Once identified and agreed 
through consultation, the 
desirable features and expected 
outcomes should be set out 
in statutory MHCLG guidance 
(replacing the 2008 CLG 
guidance).

95



15 Good governance in the LGPS

Proposal Why Suggested actions

2 Critical features of the 
‘outcomes-based’ model  
to include:

a. Robust conflict management.

b. Assurance on sufficiency 
of administration resources 
(quantity and competency) and 
appropriate budget.

c. Explanation of policy on 
employer and scheme member 
engagement and representation 
in governance. 

d. Regular independent review of 
governance.

The detailed specification of the 
desirable features and expected 
outcomes of an ‘outcomes-based’ 
model are beyond the scope of this 
project and should be determined 
in a second stage of work and 
through consultation. 

However, based on responses to 
the survey we propose a small 
number of critical elements to 
ensure this approach is effective. 
These proposals are shown below 
under 2(a) – (d).

SAB to consider making these 
features mandatory but determining 
other aspects of the detailed 
specification of features and 
expected outcomes in a further 
phase of work (as per Proposal 1).

2a Robust conflict management.

Administering authorities should be 
able to decide locally how they will 
evidence this requirement including 
for example: 
• Published conflicts policy.

• Protocols for setting and 
managing budgets.

• Schemes of delegation.

• Documented roles and 
responsibilities of elected 
members on s101 committees, 
s151 officers and pension fund 
officers.

Elected councillors and s151 officers 
have multiple competing statutory 
responsibilities, within their roles 
in the LGPS and in wider council 
responsibilities. High professional 
standards and experience help 
them to navigate. Additional 
measures specific to their LGPS 
duties can help reduce conflicts 
and perception of conflicts.

Many administering authorities 
already have a conflicts policy 
or alternative arrangements to 
help reduce the risk of conflicts 
including, for example, schemes 
of delegation or well defined 
and documented roles and 
responsibilities.

SAB should consider making 
this a mandatory feature of any 
‘outcomes-based’ governance 
model. 

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

6.  Proposals (continued)
96



July 2019 16

Proposal Why Suggested actions

2b Assurance administration and 
other resource (quantity and 
competency) sufficient to meet 
regulatory requirements and 
budget appropriate.

This will require a transparent 
approach to setting and managing 
budgets. 

Administering authorities should be 
able to decide locally how they will 
evidence this requirement including 
for example:

• Benchmarking.

• External expert advice.

• Internal or external audit.

• Review by LPB with appropriate 
expert advice. 

Administering authorities may 
need freedom to use market 
supplements to attract and retain 
staff and should not be tied to 
council staffing policies such as 
recruitment freezes.

The administrative burden on the 
LGPS has increased significantly 
due to increasing complexity  
(pre- and post-Hutton benefits)  
and the massive growth in  
employer numbers. 

At the same time, there is increased 
scrutiny from TPR and risk of fines 
and other regulator interventions. 

It is critical that pension 
administration teams are sufficiently 
well resourced with competent 
personnel and appropriate 
administration systems.

This aim must be supported by 
transparent processes for setting 
appropriate budgets. 

Pensions administration is a 
specialist role and, at the current 
time, it is difficult to attract and 
retain staff. 

Many administering authorities 
already have pay and recruitment 
policies relevant to the needs of 
their pension functions rather than 
being tied to the general policies of 
the council.

SAB should consider making 
this a mandatory feature of any 
‘outcomes-based’ governance 
model.

2c Explain policy on employer 
and member engagement and 
representation in governance.

At the current time, employer and 
member representation (with or 
without voting rights) should be 
encouraged but not compelled. 
Decisions on the approach 
to member representation 
should remain a local matter but 
administering authorities should 
explain their approach.

Most administering authorities 
have non-administering authority 
employer and scheme member 
representatives. 

Non-administering authority 
employers are often chosen 
to represent certain employer 
constituencies (e.g. academies, FE, 
charities and housing associations). 

In some cases, scheme member 
representatives have voting rights. 
>>

SAB to consider making these 
features mandatory but determining 
other aspects of the detailed 
specification of features and 
expected outcomes in a further 
phase of work (as per Proposal 1).

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

97



17 Good governance in the LGPS

Proposal Why Suggested actions

Many survey respondents support 
greater encouragement to include 
scheme member reps on s101 
committees.

However, administering authorities 
prefer some local flexibility on 
this, including how representatives 
are selected and whether they 
have voting rights. Importantly, 
administering authorities 
should retain majority voting 
representation because of the 
statutory responsibilities they bear. 

2d Regular independent review 
of governance to assess 
effectiveness of administering 
authority’s governance 
arrangements in the context of the 
desirable features and expected 
outcomes set out in guidance on 
an ‘outcomes-based’ model. This 
should be based on an enhanced 
governance compliance statement 
which should explain how the 
required outcomes are delivered.

Guidance should not prescribe 
the approach but could set out 
acceptable methods which may 
include: 

i. Internal or external audit 
assessment; 

ii.  Scrutiny by LPBs; 

iii. A peer review process.

It is important that any ‘outcomes-
based’ approach is policed. 

Self-assessment is insufficient. 
Independent review is required for 
a more objective assessment. 

We discovered that some funds do 
this on a regular basis already using 
a variety of approaches including 
internal and external audit and other 
external experts and advisors.

SAB should consider making 
this a mandatory feature of any 
‘outcomes-based’ governance 
model. 

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

98



July 2019 18

6.  Proposals (continued)

Proposal Why Suggested actions

3 Enhanced training requirements 
for s151s and s101 committee 
members.  This is to include all s151 
officers, not just those currently 
with administering authority 
responsibilities.

s151s: Current CIPFA training 
does not have specific pensions 
modules. CPD for those at or 
close to s151 level would be more 
effective and have impact sooner 
than changes to exam syllabus, 
although the latter would also 
have longer term benefit. Greater 
understanding of the LGPS amongst 
the wider s151 community may also 
reduce perception of conflicts.

s101 committees: Currently the 
training requirements for Local 
Pension Board members (which are 
statutory) are more onerous than 
those tor s101 committee members. 
Survey respondents felt this 
inconsistency was unacceptable 
and that s101 training should be on  
a par with LPB requirements.

i. CIPFA to develop a CPD module 
for s151 practitioners in the 
LGPS.

ii. SAB / MHCLG statutory 
guidance to require training 
for s101s to be on a par with 
members of Local Pension 
Boards.

4 Update relevant guidance and 
provide better sign-posting.

It would also be helpful to provide 
greater clarity to officers and 
elected members on their statutory 
and fiduciary obligations.  

As well as sign-posting, there 
should be clarity on the status of 
current and future guidance (e.g. 
statutory and therefore compulsory 
or best practice)

The main guidance relevant to 
governance includes: 

i. CIPFA guidance for s151s in 
respect of LGPS responsibilities 
(2014); and 

ii. CLG’s statutory guidance on 
governance of governance 
compliance statements (2008).

Both pre-date PSPA 2013, 
involvement of TPR in LGPS 
governance and investment 
pooling. 

Both must be updated.

i. CIPFA to review and update 
guidance for s151s in respect of 
LGPS governance.

ii. MHCLG to review and 
update statutory guidance on 
governance. In particular, this 
should put greater emphasis 
on non-investment aspects 
of governance such as 
administration.

iii. SAB should consider 
commissioning legal input to 
give greater clarity on statutory 
and fiduciary responsibilities of 
s151 officers and s101 elected 
members.

iv. SAB or MHCLG should provide 
greater clarity on the status of 
current and future guidance 
(e.g. statutory and therefore 
compulsory or best practice.)

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

99



19 Good governance in the LGPS

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 3: Other ideas considered but rejected or out of scope

Proposal Reason for non-recommendation

1 Separate s151 for  
pension fund.

• A benefit would be specific focus on LGPS matters and therefore greater depth 
of understanding. 

• However, this is unlikely to help reduce conflicts (the pension fund s151 still has 
fiduciary responsibility to local tax-payers and may report to council s151) and 
may not be practical for smaller funds with greater resource constraints. 

2 Compulsory 
benchmarking.

• Concerns because benchmark data not like for like (e.g. same cost per member 
but different service); and (ii) risk this drives lowest common denominator 
results instead of innovation in service delivery

• We recognise that benchmarking has a place and would welcome the 
development of more sophisticated forms of benchmarking that focus on the 
quality of the service delivered.

3 Legal separation of 
pension fund accounts.

• Requires change in primary legislation.

• Pension fund accounts already separated, audited and shown in Pension Fund 
Annual Report (annual report is a statutory requirement). 

• It is unclear what additional benefit there is in legal separation of PF accounts 
form administering authority/council.

4 Mandating extension 
of audit to include an 
opinion on suitability 
of LGPS governance 
arrangements.

• Some funds commission an external (or internal) audit view voluntarily.

• NAO has confirmed that this could only be mandated through legal separation 
of pension fund accounts (see above).

• Concerns on some external auditors’ lack of LGPS knowledge and lack of 
continuity due to changing personnel.

• Preference to allow flexibility in approach to independent assessment of 
governance arrangements and their efficacy.

5 Removing s151 from 
decisions around 
admin budgeting due to 
conflicts.

• s151 has statutory responsibility.

6 Merger of funds to 
facilitate different 
governance models.

• Weakened link to local democratic accountability.

• Outside of the scope of the project.

100



July 2019 20

Table 4: Suggested follow up work beyond the scope of this report

Suggested follow up work Why

1 SAB to consult on 
detailed specification of 
desirable features and 
expected outcomes from 
an ‘outcomes-based’ 
model.

• Important to get buy-in and support for the practical details of an ‘outcomes-
based’ governance model.

2 CIPFA and MHCLG to 
update existing guidance.

• Existing guidance is out of date.

3 Commission legal work to 
provide greater clarity on 
statutory versus fiduciary 
obligations (s151 and s101 
committee members).

• Statutory responsibilities take precedence.

• Currently unclear.

4 SAB to consider a  
‘Good Administration’ 
review.

• Survey respondents expressed interest in some work to set out what good 
administration looks like, examples of current best practice, good approaches 
to meeting the needs of scheme members and employers, and greater clarity 
on what standards will be required to satisfy TPR.

• This will help administering authorities to be clear what standards they must 
achieve in order to provide ‘assurance’ that administration resources are 
sufficient in quantity and competency, identify any gaps and determine what 
practical steps they might take to address those gaps. 

5 SAB to consider a review 
of the role of Pension 
Boards in LGPS.

• Very mixed reports on the role and success in working with Pension Boards in 
the LGPS.   

6.  Proposals (continued)
101



21 Good governance in the LGPS

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 5: ‘Outcomes-based’ model - concept illustration

Outcome: examples How to demonstrate that your governance model complies: examples

1 Robust conflict management. • Conflicts policy.

• Scheme of delegation or decision matrix setting out who makes what 
decisions.

• Transparent process for approving budgets.

• Documented roles and responsibilities of elected members on s101 
committees, s151 officers and pension fund officers.

2 Assurance administration and 
other resource (quantity and 
competency) sufficient to meet 
regulatory requirements and 
budget appropriate.

• Benchmarking.

• External expert advice.

• Internal or external audit.

• Review by LPB with appropriate expert advice.

• Process for setting administration budget.

• Policies in respect of recruitment and market supplements to attract 
and retain staff.

3 Explain policy on employer 
and member engagement and 
representation in governance.

• Set out approach to employer and member engagement e.g. 
communication plan, AGM, employer liaison and support.

• Set out approach to participation of non-administering authority 
employers in governance of fund e.g. representatives of academies, 
admitted bodies, FE, charity sector, etc.

• Set out approach participation of scheme members in governance 
(e.g. observers, voting members, how selected, etc.) and rationale for 
approach.

4 Regular independent 
assessment  
of governance arrangements.

State method e.g.

• Internal or external audit assessment; or

• Scrutiny by Local Pension Board; or

• External expert / consultant; or

• Peer review process.

Describe scope and approach e.g. 

• Reviewing policies, meeting minutes.

• Reviewing committee efficacy in decision-making, etc.

102



July 2019 22

Scheme Advisory Board: 
Good Governance Survey

Appendix A

103



23 Good governance in the LGPS

The following pages replicate the online Good Governance survey on governance  
models for the LGPS. The survey closed on 31 May 2019.

Comment box provided.

Introduction 
The Scheme Advisory Board has commissioned Hymans Robertson to review LGPS governance 
structures and practices.  This survey is part of a key part of the project and we are keen to 
collect views from as wide a range of stakeholders as possible. Further details on the scope and 
background to the project can be found on the SAB website.

To help inform this survey and the options for governance change presented for feedback, 
views were sought from a representative range of LGPS stakeholders (including pension fund 
officers, section 151 officers, trade unions and other advisors) in order to understand the issues 
and challenges that the current LGPS governance arrangements present.  

Examples of issues cited by respondents included:

• Clarity: There is sometimes lack of clarity over roles and responsibilities.

• Conflicts: A number of stakeholders raised the issue of perceived conflicts of interest 
between the fund and the council, in particular for the section 151 of the administering 
authority given his or her responsibilities for the financial management of other council 
functions.  It was suggested these could manifest themselves in terms of the strategic 
decisions taken by the fund in respect of funding (contribution rate decisions) and 
investment or in respect of allocating resource to the pension fund.

• Consistency: It is widely recognised that there are many examples of good practice within 
the LGPS and that section 151s and pension funds manage these conflicts well.  However, 
it was noted that this good practice largely relies on the professionalism and good will of 
individuals and the ethos of the authority. There is very little regulation or guidance that 
would safeguard the situation if such high standards were absent.   

• Representation: The issue of appropriate representation was raised, in particular for non-
administering authorities. Some respondents suggested that there could be improvements 
in the way administering authorities engage with the other employers in the fund on 
administration resourcing as well as funding, contributions and investment matters. 

• Standards: It was also noted that LGPS funds evidence varying levels of compliance with 
the standards for administration, funding and investment set out in statutory legislation, 
relevant guidance and the TPR Code of Practice 14. 

• Miscellaneous: Other issues raised included lack of continuity in committee members; 
shortage of in-house skills, expertise and subject matter knowledge in investment and 
funding; and restrictions on recruitment and pay policy for the pensions function.

Please use the box below to provide details of any additional issues which you believe the 
Board should address as part of this exercise.

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey
104



July 2019 24

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Comment box provided.

The criteria
Based on the issues raised by stakeholders, the Board has agreed 6 criteria which will be used 
to assess any proposed changes to LGPS governance arrangements. 

Standards
The model enables funds to meet good standards of governance across 
all areas of statutory responsibility including TPR requirements.

Conflict

The model minimises conflicts between the pension function and the 
host local authority, including but not limited to s151 officer conflicts (in 
operational areas such budgets, resourcing, recruitment and pay policies 
and in strategic areas such as funding and investment policy).

Representation
The model allows for appropriate involvement in decision making for 
key stakeholders (including administering authority, non-administering 
authorities, other employer and member representatives).

Clarity 
The model delivers clarity of accountability and responsibility for each 
relevant role.

Consistency
The model minimises dependence on the professionalism of individuals 
and existing relationships to deliver statutory responsibilities.

Cost
The cost of implementing and running the model is likely to be worthwhile 
versus benefits delivered.

Please use the box below to provide details of any additional criteria which you believe the 
Board should consider as part of this exercise.

105



25 Good governance in the LGPS

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Governance models in this survey
The Scheme Advisory Board would like to hear your views on four governance models set out 
below.   

Option 1 – Improved practice: Introduce guidance or amendments to LGPS Regulations 2013 
to enhance the existing arrangements by increasing the independence of the management of 
the fund and clarifying the standards expected in key areas. 

Option 2 – Greater ring fencing of the LGPS within existing structures: Clearer ring-fencing 
of pension fund management from the host authority, including budgets, resourcing and pay 
policies. 

Option 3 – Joint Committee (JC): Responsibility for all LGPS functions delegated to a JC 
comprising the administering authority and non-administering authorities in the fund. Inter-
authority agreement (IAA) makes JC responsible for recommending budget, resourcing and pay 
policies.

Option 4 -  New local authority body – an alternative single purpose legal entity that would 
retain local democratic accountability and be subject to Local Government Act provisions.

It is recognised that a one size fits all approach may not be appropriate. 

Final recommendations by SAB could be variations on the models described here, taking 
account of your feedback. Any regulation changes needed will be fully assessed before SAB 
makes final recommendations.   We have not provided detailed costing of each of the models 
presented in the survey. The cost of implementation would in any case vary across different 
funds, but, generally, the effort and cost to implement increases as we move from Option 1 
to Option 4. Detailed costing of any recommendations emerging from this exercise would be 
undertaken prior to implementation.

In the next section we set out a brief description of each of the options along with the 
opportunity for you to provide your views on how well each option compares against the 
agreed criteria. 

For brevity the option descriptions have been included on the next two pages, followed 
by the response form (which was identical for all four options).

106



July 2019 26

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Option 1 - Improved practice
Features
• SAB guidance on minimum expected 

levels of staffing and resourcing;

• SAB guidance on representation on 
pension committees and expected 
levels of training for those on pension 
committees and officers with an LGPS 
role. Additional guidance could also 
be considered on the best practice for 
pension boards.

• Legal clarification on the fiduciary and 
statutory duties of key individuals within 
LGPS funds.

• LGPS regulations set out enhanced 
process for consulting on FSS and ISS to 
ensure greater voice for the full range of 
employers in the fund.

Option 2 - Greater ring fencing of the LGPS 
within existing structures
Features
• The pension fund budget is set at the start of the financial year with 

reference to its own business plan and service needs.

• Any charges to the fund in respect of support services provided by 
the host authority, for example legal support, HR and procurement 
is included in the budget up front.

• Pension fund related expenditure then comes directly from the 
fund. This removes the common practice whereby pension fund 
expenditure is paid though the host authority’s revenue account to 
be recharged at a later date.  

• The section 151 of the administering authority would retain 
responsibility for the pensions function but recommendations 
on budget (including administration resources required to meet 
TPR standards) would be made by a pension fund officer to the 
pensions committee which would be responsible for agreeing the 
budget. (Alternatively, the pension fund could have a separate s151 
officer to reduce conflicts currently faced by s151s.*)

• The pension committee would be responsible for agreeing the 
budget as well as approving any changes to that budget during the 
financial year.

• The cost of staffing would be met through the fund including any 
additional costs such as market supplements or redundancy strain. 

• Changes to the Audit and Accounting Regulations 2015 could be 
considered to make the fund accounts legally separate and subject 
to a separate audit.  

In addition to the budget related aspects outlined above further 
steps could be taken which would give funds greater autonomy over 
employment policies.  The model is analogous to the fund being 
treated as an internal business unit of the council.

• Staff will continue to be employed by the host council but polices 
over certain HR matters such as recruitment and the payment of 
market supplements will be delegated to the pension committee.

• Decisions over other matters pertinent to the fund, for example 
investment in new administration technology, would also lie with 
the pension committee. 

• Decisions around the structure of the pension function would be 
for the fund’s management team to make with the approval of the 
pension committee.*

* Further consideration is required as to whether these practices could simply be 
encouraged by regulatory bodies or whether it is possible and/or desirable to find a 
mechanism by which these could be mandated.

107



27 Good governance in the LGPS

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Option 4 - New local  
authority body
Features
An alternative single purpose legal entity that 
would retain local democratic accountability 
and be subject to Local Government Act 
provisions.

This might be through a combined authority 
route or through a public body established by 
statute.

• The new body must retain a strong link to 
democratic accountability. 

• Employment of staff and contractual 
issues dealt with by the new body. 

• Assets and liabilities transferred to the 
new body.

• Separate accounts based on CIPFA 
guidance.

• Funded by an element of the contribution 
rate and by a levy on constituent 
authorities.

• Officers in the new body are responsible 
only for the delivery of the LGPS function. 

Option 3 - Use of new structures:  
Joint Committees (JC)
Features
• The scheme manager function and all LGPS decision making, which 

currently sits with the administering authority, would be delegated 
to a section 102 JC.  The committee would comprise all the local 
authorities who currently participate in the fund as employers.  

• Consideration could be given to the representation of other 
employers and scheme members on the JC. 

• Assets and liabilities still sit with the existing administering authority. 

• Employment of staff and contractual issues dealt with through a 
lead authority or a wholly owned company. This could be codified 
within an Inter Authority Agreement (IAA).

• The IAA would stipulate that the budget will be agreed by the JC. 
s151s of the constituent local authority employers retain a fiduciary 
duty to the local taxpayer but the IAA would distance them legally 
from budget setting responsibilities in respect of the pensions 
function.

108



July 2019 28

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Please use the voting buttons to indicate to what extent moving from existing arrangements to Option (1, 2, 3 or 4)
would achieve each of the criteria.

Standards
The model enables funds to meet good standards 
of governance across all areas of statutory 
responsibility including TPR requirements.

1 2 3 4 5

Conflict

The model minimises conflicts between the 
pension function and the host local authority, 
including but not limited to s151 officer conflicts 
(in operational areas such budgets, resourcing, 
recruitment and pay policies and in strategic areas 
such as funding and investment policy).

1 2 3 4 5

Representation

The model allows for appropriate involvement in 
decision making for key stakeholders (including 
administering authority, non-administering 
authorities, other employer and member 
representatives).

1 2 3 4 5

Clarity
The model delivers clarity of accountability and 
responsibility for each relevant role.

1 2 3 4 5

Consistency
The model minimises dependence on 
professionalism and relationships to deliver 
statutory responsibilities.

1 2 3 4 5

Cost
The cost of implementing and running the model is 
likely to be worthwhile versus benefits delivered.

1 2 3 4 5

Please provide any comments you may have regarding Option 1/2/3/4 in the box below.

Comment box provided.

Comment box provided.

Are there any alternative governance structures not covered between Option 1 – Option 4 which you believe 
the Board should consider?

Finally, respondents were asked:

109



29 Good governance in the LGPS

Abbreviations
Appendix B

110



July 2019 30

Appendix B:  Abbreviations

ALATS The Association of Local Authorities’ Treasurers Societies 

CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

CLG Communities and Local Government (former name of MHCLG)

CPD Continuous Professional Development 

FE Further Education

JC Joint Committee formed under s102 of the Local Government Act 1972

LA Local Authority 

LGPS Local Government Pension Scheme

LPB Local Pension Board 

MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government  

NAO National Audit Office

PF Pension Fund

PIRC Pensions and Investment Research Consultants Ltd

PLSA Pension and Lifetime Savings Association 

PSPA 2013 Public Service Pensions Act 2013

PSAA Public Sector Audit Appointments 

s101 A committee established under s101 of the Local Government Act 1972

s151 An officer with responsibilities under s151 of the Local Government Act 1972

SAB Scheme Advisory Board for the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales 

SCT Society of County Treasurers 

SLT Society of London Treasurers 

SWT Society of Welsh Treasurers

TPR The Pensions Regulator 

Abbreviations

111



London  |  Birmingham  |  Glasgow  |  Edinburgh    T 020 7082 6000  |   www.hymans.co.uk   |   www.clubvita.co.uk

Hymans Robertson LLP (registered in England and Wales - One London Wall, London EC2Y 5EA - OC310282) is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. A member of Abelica Global.  

© Hymans Robertson LLP. Hymans Robertson uses FSC approved paper. 

112



 

 

 

 
LOCAL PENSION BOARD  

 
16 SEPTEMBER 2019  

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
CONSULTATION – LOCAL VALUATION CYCLE AND MANAGEMENT OF 

EMPLOYER RISK  
 
 
Purpose of the Report  
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Local Pension Board on the 
potential implications of the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) consultation “LGPS: Changes to the local valuation 
cycle and the management of employer risk policy”. 

 
 Background 
 
2. In May 2019 MHCLG started a 12 week consultation, which closed on 31 July 

2019. The consultation covers the following areas: 

 Extension from the current three years to a four year valuation cycle 

 Mitigation to the risks of lengthening the valuation cycle 

 Flexibility on exit payments to reduce risk of employer default 

 Proposals for further policy changes to exit credits 

 Proposals for changes to the employers required to offer local government 
pension scheme membership. 

 
Officers in conjunction with the Chair of the Local Pension Board replied to the 
consultation on the 19 June 2019. The reply is attached as Appendix A.  
 
 

3. Changes to the LGPS Valuation Cycle  
 

Every three years the triennial pension scheme valuation takes place. The 
Fund’s assets and liabilities are assessed on the 31 March 2019 and the 
overall funding position is calculated. Each of the Fund’s employer 
contributions rates are calculated and the rates set for three years, 1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2023. 

 
There is a proposal that the LGPS scheme valuation should be moved from 
the current triennial to a quadrennial cycle in line with other public service 
scheme valuations. This could also influence the timing of local fund 

113 Agenda Item 10



 

 

valuations. Discussions with MHCLG and actuarial advisers will take place 
shortly to consider the implications of this change.  
 
 
 

4.  Management of Employer Risk 
 

The consultation proposes some changes to manging employer risk to reduce 
the risk of employers becoming insolvent when they leave the scheme. 
 
The consultation questions whether Funds should have the flexibility to 
spread deficit payments, which are made on a full buy-out basis, that currently 
become due when the last active member leaves the scheme. 
 
The Fund supports the proposal for regulation changes to allow flexibility on 
spreading repayments from exiting employers. Practically this already exists 
so the regulations changes are welcome. 
 
The implications in not allowing this could be very significant for exiting 
employers. If an exiting employer was financially unstable, being forced to 
make payment of the exit termination valuation could bankrupt the employer. 
This debt would then fall on the remaining scheme employers. Therefore, 
spreading payment over a period of months or years to avoid bankruptcy 
seems eminently sensible. 
 

 
5. Exit Credits  
 

The consultation questions if the administering authority should take into 
account a scheme employers exposure to risk in calculating the value of an 
exit credit. This follows the Amendment Regulation changes introduced in 
May 2018 that have had some unintended consequences.  
 
In response to the consultation the Fund propose the original employer (the 
letting employer) and the contractor, at the point of transfer, agree what will 
happen to any exit payment when the contract ends. If this takes place, the 
level of concern reduces but the Fund is in agreement that the administering 
authority should take into account of the employers’ exposure to risk when 
calculating the exit credit.     
 
The Fund fully supports not making payment of surpluses back to the 
contractor as standard and believes all payments should be calculated on a 
full buy out basis. 
 
The implications of not making changes to the scheme rules means currently 
exiting contractors in surplus may receive payment back of the amount.  

 
 
 
 

114



 

 

 
 

6. Employers Required to offer LGPS Membership 
 

 
The consultation questions if Further Education corporations, sixth form 
college corporations and higher education corporations should be able to 
close the LGPS to new employees. 
 
The Fund recognises the cost of the LGPS for some employers is becoming 
an increasing concern and why the chance for some employers not to offer 
the scheme to new members is attractive. 
 
However, the implications of allowing this would be to create a more mature 
fund with less active members replacing the leavers. This will make employer 
contributions more sensitive to shortfalls. Without new member contributions 
the mature fund will have a negative cash flow meaning that investment 
returns play a diminishing role in reducing any shortfall.  
 
This element of the consultation has arisen due to changes that have taken 
place in the further education sectors, in recent years. In the consultation the 
Government stresses the financial independence of these bodies: 
 
“Reflecting the independent, non-public sector status, of further education, 
sixth form colleges, and the autonomous, non-public sector status of higher 
education corporations, these bodies are responsible for determining their 
own business models and for ensuring that their financial positions are 
sound”. 
 
The consultation goes further reinforcing the risk to other scheme employers: 
 
“The costs associated with meeting the liabilities of a failed organisation could 
therefore fall back on local authorities and other scheme employers, meaning 
there may be a direct impact on the finances of public bodies in a particular 
area if an organisation fails.” 
 
Government is clearly indicating that they will not rescue these bodies if they 
were to become financially distressed. This risk is being taken into account in 
the actuarial valuation that is currently being undertaken. 
 

   
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Board notes the consultation response in the appendix. 
 
Appendix 
 
Response to MHCLG consultation 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 

115



 

 

 
None specific 

 
 

Officers to Contact 
 

Ian Howe – Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945 
 

Declan Keegan – Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property - telephone 
(0116) 305 6199 

      

116



117

ctuohy_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



 

 
LOCAL PENSION BOARD – 16 SEPTEMBER 2019   

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 

 
 
Purpose 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of any changes relating to the risk 
management and internal controls of the Pension Fund, as stipulated in the Pension 
Regulator’s Code of Practice. 

 
 
Background 

 
2. The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) code of practice on governance and administration 

of public service pension schemes requires that administrators need to record and 
members be kept aware of ‘risk management and internal controls’. The code 
states this should be a standing item on each Pension Board and Pension 
Committee agenda. 

 
3. In order to comply with the code the risk register and an update on supporting 

activity is included on each agenda. 
 
 

Risk Register 
 

4. The updated Risk Register is attached as an appendix to this report. Progress 
updates have been made to risks 1, 2, 4, 11, 12 and 14. The rating of risks 1 and 2 
has reduced to reflect the progress made in the Guaranteed Minimum Pension and 
system implementation projects.  
 

5. A new risk (5) has been added relating to the McCloud age discrimination case. The 
remedy for the case is likely to have a significant financial and administrative 
impact. 

 
 

Identified Risks of Concern 
 

6. There are currently no identified risks of concern. 
 
Recommendation 
 

7. The Local Pension Board is asked to note the latest risk register of the Pension 
Fund. 

 

125 Agenda Item 11



Appendix 
 
Appendix A- Risk Register 

 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr I Howe, Pensions Manager, Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6945 Email: Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk  
 

126



Leicestershire Pension Fund Risk Register September 2019 

Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

1 Pens 

 If the Pension Fund  

fails to reconcile HRMC 

Guaranteed Minimum 

Pension (GMP) data 

with the Pension 

Section data there is a 

risk of overpayment of 

Pensions Increase 

 

From 2018 the pensions 

section has had 

responsibility for GMPs 

creating the need to ensure 

that this is accounted for in 

the pensions increases  

 

Overpaying 

pensions (i.e. for 

GMP cases pension 

increases are lower) 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Checking of HMRC 

GMP data to identify 

any discrepancies  

 

Full time person 

recruited to work on 

the project 

3 3 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

Working through cases 

Developed reporting 

tools to assist 

HMRC have closed their 

window for new 

submissions 

 

2 1 2 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 

 

2 Pens 

 

 If the Pension Fund 

fails to implement a 

pension administration 

system, pensioner 

payroll and immediate 

payments system the 

Pension Section will fail 

to deliver its statutory 

duties for both LGPS 

and the 3 Fire 

Authorities. It will also 

be unable to pay 

pensioners and other 

single payments (e.g. 

lump sums) 

 

A new system has been 
implemented, with several 
features subject to a gradual 
roll-out. 
 

 
Unable to pay 
pensioners 
 
Unable to pay single 
payments 
 
Unable to meet 
statutory 
requirements 
 
Manual calculations 
 
Huge increase in 
administration time 
causing delays 
 
Increased appeals 
 
 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Gradual 

implementation of 

member self-service 

functionality  

Working in 

partnership with 

another Fund 

Phased approach to 

implementation, with 

single payment the 

most significant piece 

of functionality 

remaining. 

4 2 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

 

Detailed project 

planning for final phase, 

accounting for other 

pressures in the section 

Pensioner payroll and 

MSS completed.  

Immediate payments to 

be completed by the 

end of 2019 

 

2 1 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 

127



3 Pens 

 If the Pensions section 

fail to meet the  service 

requirements of the 

three Fire Authorities 

we may lose their 

business 

 

 

Changes in legislation on the 

Firefighters pension scheme 

has significantly increased 

the scheme’s complexity. 

Only limited knowledge in 

the Section in this area.  

Outstanding legal challenges 

could significantly impact on 

the Fire scheme rules and 

administration time 

 

 

 

 

 

Reputation 

 

Potential loss of 

business  

Increased 

administration  

 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Quarterly meetings 

take place with the 

Fire Authorities to 

resolve issues  

 

Membership of the 

Midlands Fire Officer 

Group enables us to 

identify and resolve 

issues early  

Resource on the team 

increased 

SLA and contracts 

produced 

2 3 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Continue to monitor and 

develop improvements 

to work processes, 

guiding all three Fire 

Authorities to similar 

processes and decisions 

(where possible). 

Set up a joint pension 

board for the 3 Fire 

Authorities 

Refresh of contracts in 

progress 

Press the LGA and all 

relevant parties 

nationally  on regulatory 

changes 

2 2 4 

 
 

 

 

 

Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 
 

 

4 Pens 

If the pensions fund fail 

to receive accurate and 

timely data from 

employers scheme 

members pension 

benefits could be 

incorrect or late  

 

 

A continuing increase in 

Fund employers is causing 

administrative pressure in 

the Pension Section. This is 

in terms of receiving 

accurate and timely data 

from these new employers 

who have little or no pension 

knowledge 

 

Late or inaccurate 

pension benefits to 

scheme members 

Reputation 

Increased appeals 

Greater 

administrative time 

being spent on 

individual 

calculations 

Ian 

Howe 

Training provided for 

new employers 

Guidance notes 

provided for 

employers 

Amended  SLA and 

communication and 

administration guide 

distributed to 

employers making   

IConnect  a statutory 

requirement by 

31/3/2020) 

 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Implement IConnect 

with employers so they 

provide monthly data in 

a secure and timely 

manner 

Inform the Local Pension 

Board each quarter on 

progress made 

 

3 2 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 
Howe 

5 
Pens/ 
Invs 

The resolution  of the 

McCloud case could 

increase administration 

significantly resulting in 

difficulties providing 

the ongoing pensions 

Mr McCloud winning his 

appeal on age discrimination 

on public sector pension 

schemes and the protection 

afforded to older members 

during the move to career 

average benefits, followed 

Ultimate outcome 

currently unknown 

but likelihood is; 

Increasing 

administration 

Ian 

Howe 

Guidance from LGA, 

Hymans, Treasury  3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat once 
details are 
confirmed 

 

Working with Hymans to 

include an estimated 

cost in the valuation 

Employer bulletin to 

2 3 6 

 
 
 
Ian 
Howe  

128



administration service  

The liabilities of the 

Fund are expected to 

increase for all 

employers 

by Government losing their 

right of appeal. 

Revision of previous 

benefits 

Additional 

communications 

Complaints/appeals 

Increased costs 

 

employers making them 

aware of the current 

situation 

Await proposed 

resolution from the 

employment tribunal 

6 

 
 
 
 
Invs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employer and employee 

contributions are not 

paid accurately and on 

time 

 

Error on the part of the 

scheme employer 

 

Potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as late payment is a 

breach of The 

Pensions Act 

 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Receipt of 

contributions is 

monitored and late 

payments are chased 

quickly 

 

 

2 4 8 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Late payers will be 

reminded of their legal 

responsibilities. 
2 3 6 

 
 

 
Declan 

Keegan 

 

7 Invs 

Assets held by the Fund 

are ultimately 

insufficient to pay 

benefits due to 

individual members 

Ineffective setting of 

employer contribution rates 

over many consecutive 

actuarial valuations 

 

Significant financial 

impact on scheme 

employers due to 

the need for large 

increases in 

employer 

contribution rates.  

 

Chris 

Tambini 

 

 

Input into actuarial 

valuation, including 

ensuring that actuarial 

assumptions are 

reasonable and the 

manner in which 

employer contribution 

rates are set does not 

bring imprudent 

future financial risk 

 

 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Actuarial assumptions 

need to include an 

element of prudence, 

and Officers need to 

understand the long-

term impact and risks 

involved with taking 

short-term views to 

artificially manage 

employer contribution 

rates.  The 2019 

valuation will assess the 

contribution rates. 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Chris 

Tambini 

 

8 
Pens/ 
Invs 

Sub-funds of individual 

employers are not 

monitored to ensure 

that there is the correct 

balance between risks 

to the Fund and fair 

treatment of the 

employer 

Changing financial position 

of both sub-fund and the 

employer 

 

 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to need for 

large increases in 

employer 

Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Ensuring, as far as 

possible, that the 

financial position of 

each employer is 

understood. On-going 

dialogue with them to 

ensure that the 

correct balance 

between risks and fair 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Dialogue with the 

employers, particularly 

in the lead up to the 

setting of new employer 

contribution rates. 

Include employer risk 

profiling as part of the 

Funding Strategy 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

129



contribution rates. 

Risk to the Fund of 

insolvency of an 

individual employer. 

This will ultimately 

increase the deficit 

of all other 

employers.  

 

treatment continues. 

 

Statement update. To 

allow better targeting of 

default risks 

Investigate 

arrangements to de-risk 

funding arrangements 

for individual employers. 

Ensure that the 

implications of the 

independent, non-public 

sector status, of further 

education, sixth form 

colleges, and the 

autonomous, non-public 

sector status of higher 

education corporations 

is fully accounted for in 

the Funding Strategy 

 

Keegan 

 

9 Invs 

 Market investment 

returns are consistently 

poor and this causes 

significant upward 

pressure onto employer 

contribution rates 

Poor market returns, most 

probably caused by poor 

economic conditions 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to the need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that strategic 

asset allocation is 

considered at least 

annually, and that the 

medium-term outlook 

for different asset 

classes is included as 

part of the 

consideration 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
Treat 

Making sure that the 

investment strategy is 

sufficiently flexible to 

take account of 

opportunities and risks 

that arise, but is still 

based on a reasonable 

medium-term 

assessment of future 

returns 

4 2 8 

 
Chris 

Tambini 

 

10 Invs 

Market returns are 

acceptable but the 

performance achieved 

by the Fund is below 

reasonable 

expectations 

Poor performance of 

individual managers, or poor 

asset allocation policy 

Opportunity cost in 

terms of lost 

investment returns, 

which is possible 

even if actual 

returns are higher 

than those allowed 

for within the 

actuarial valuation 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that the 

causes of 

underperformance 

are understood and 

acted on where 

appropriate 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
Treat 

After careful 

consideration, take 

decisive action where 

this is deemed 

appropriate. It should be 

recognised that some 

managers have a style-

bias and that poor 

performance will 

happen on occasions. 

2 2 4 

 
Chris 

Tambini 

130



11 Invs 

Failure to take account 

of ALL risks to future 

investment returns 

within the setting of 

asset allocation policy 

and/or the 

appointment of 

investment managers 

Some assets classes or 

individual investments 

perform poorly as a result of 

incorrect assessment of all 

risks inherent within the 

investment. 

Opportunity cost 

within investment 

returns, and 

potential for actual 

returns to be low. 

This will lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been necessary. 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that all 

factors that may 

impact onto 

investment returns 

are taken into account 

when setting the asset 

allocation.  

Only appointing 

investment managers 

that integrate 

responsible 

investment into their 

processes. 

Utilisation of 

dedicated Responsible 

Investment team at 

LGPS Central 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Responsible investment 
aims to incorporate 

environmental, social 

and governance (ESG) 

factors into investment 

decisions, to better 

manage risk and 

generate sustainable, 

long-term returns. 

Annual refresh of the 

Fund’s asset allocation 

allows an up to date 

view of risks to be 

incorporated and avoids 

significant sort term 

changes to the 

allocation. 

2 2 4 

 

 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

12 Invs 

Investment pooling 

within the LGPS fails to 

deliver a higher long 

term net investment 

return 

LGPS Central fails to deliver 

better net investment 

returns than the Fund would 

have expected to achieve it 

investment pooling did not 

occur 

Lower returns will 

ultimately lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been the case 

Chris 

Tambini 

Shareholders’ Forum, 

Joint Committee and 

Practitioners’ Advisory 

Forum will give   

significant influence in 

the event of issues 

arising. 

Appraisal of each 

investment products 

before a commitment 

to transition is made 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

The set-up of LGPS 

Central is likely to be the 

most difficult phase. The 

Fund will continue to 

monitor closely how the 

company evolves 

Programme of LGPS 

Central internal audit 

activity, which has been 

designed in 

collaboration with the 

audit functions of the 

partner funds. 

2 2 4 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

13 Invs 

Investment decisions 

are made without 

having sufficient 

expertise to properly 

assess the risks and 

potential returns  

The combination of 

knowledge at Committee, 

Officer and Consultant level 

is not sufficiently high 

Poor decisions likely 

to lead to low 

returns, which will 

require higher 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Continuing focus on 

ensuring that there is 

sufficient expertise to 

be able to make 

thoughtfully 

considered 

investment decisions  

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat 

On-going process of 

updating and improving 

the knowledge of 

everybody involved in 

the decision-making 

process 

2 2 4 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

14 Invs 

The transition of 

investment assets to 

LGPS Central is not 

Pooling does not reduce the 

on-going management costs 

of assets 

Savings available do 

not justify the 

transition costs and 

on-going cost of 

Chris 

Tambini 

Central maintains the 

flexibility to run funds 

internally. 
2 3 6 Treat 

Approach for each 

transition assessed 

independently. 
2 2 4 

Chris 

Tambini 

131



 

 

Risk Impact Measurement Criteria 
 

Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

1 Negligible 
Little impact to objectives 
in service plan 

Limited disruption to operations and 
service quality satisfactory 

Minor injuries 
Public concern 
restricted to local 
complaints 

Pension Section 
  <£50k 
Investments 

Losses expected to be 
recovered in the short 
term 

 

 

2 Minor 
Minor impact to service as 
objectives in service plan 
are not met 

Short term disruption to operations 
resulting in a minor adverse impact 
on partnerships and minimal 
reduction in service quality. 

Minor Injury to  those 
in the Council’s care 

Minor adverse local / 
public / media 
attention and 
complaints 

Pension Section 
£50k-£250k Minimal 
effect on budget/cost 

Investments 
Some 
underperformance, but 
within the bounds of 
normal market volatility 

successful Transition costs are 

significantly higher, for 

example the cost of selling 

the existing investments and 

buying new ones.  

running LGPS 

Central 

Specialist transition 

manager being 

appointed, with 

independent specialist 

oversight. 

Formal review follows 

each transition. 

Implementation being 

phased, allowing 

capacity to be 

managed and lessons 

learned. 

Views from 8 partners 

sought throughout the 

transition process.  

 

LGPS Central’s Internal 

Audit plan includes an 

assessment of the 

governance surrounding 

the transition 

132



Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

3 Moderate 
Considerable fall in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Sustained moderate level disruption 
to operations / Relevant partnership 
relationships strained / Service 
quality not satisfactory 

Potential  for minor 
physical injuries / 
Stressful experience 

Adverse local media 
public attention 

Pension Section 
£250k - £500k Small 
increase on 
budget/cost: Handled 
within the team/service 

 
Investment 

Underperformance by a 
manager requiring 
review by the 
Investment Sub-
committee 

4 Major 
Major impact to services 
as objectives in service 
plan are not met.  

Serious disruption to operations with 
relationships in major partnerships 
affected / Service quality not 
acceptable with adverse impact on 
front line services. Significant 
disruption of core activities. Key 
targets missed. 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
creating potential for 
serious physical or 
mental harm 

Serious negative 
regional criticism, with 
some national 
coverage 

Pension Section 
£500-£750k. Significant 
increase in budget/cost. 
Service budgets 
exceeded 

 
Investment 

Underperformance of 
significant proportion of 
assets leading to a 
review of the 
Investment or Funding 
strategy 

5 
Very 
High/Critical 

Significant fall/failure in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Long term serious interruption to 
operations / Major partnerships under 
threat / Service quality not acceptable 
with impact on front line services 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
leading to potential 
loss of life or 
permanent 
physical/mental 
damage. Life 
threatening or multiple 
serious injuries 

Prolonged regional 
and national 
condemnation, with 
serious damage to the 
reputation of the 
organisation i.e. front-
page headlines, TV. 
Possible criminal, or 
high profile, civil 
action against the 
Council/Fund, 
members or officers 

Pension Section 
>£750k Large increase 
on budget/cost. 

 
Investment 

Employer contributions 
expect to increase  
significantly above 
Funding Strategy 
requirement 

 

133



Risk Likelihood Measurement Criteria 
 

Rating Scale Likelihood Example of Loss/Event Frequency Probability % 

1 Very rare/unlikely EXCEPTIONAL event. This will probably 
never happen/recur. 

<20% 

2 Unlikely Event NOT EXPECTED. Do not expect it 
to happen/recur, but it is possible it may do 

so. 

20-40% 

3 Possible LITTLE LIKELIHOOD of event occurring. It 
might happen or recur occasionally. 

40-60% 

4 Probable  /Likely Event is MORE THAN LIKELY to occur. 
Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a 

persisting issue. 

60-80% 

5 Almost Certain Reasonable to expect that the event WILL 
undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly 

frequently. 

>80% 

 

 

Risk Scoring Matrix 
     

       

 
Impact 

     

 
5  Very High/Critical 5 10 15 20 25 

 
4  Major 4 8 12 16 20 

 
3  Moderate 3 6 9 12 15 

 
2  Minor 2 4 6 8 10 

 
1  Negligible 1 2 3 4 5 

  
1 2 3 4 5 

  
Very Rare/Unlikely Unlikely     Possible/Likely 

        Probable/ 
Likely    Almost certain 

  

Likelihood of risk occurring over lifetime of objective (i.e. 12 mths) 

 

134



 

 

 

 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD –  16 SEPTEMBER 2019   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

PENSION FUND TRAINING POLICY 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to seek the Board’s views on a draft Training Policy for 
members of the Local Pension Committee and Local Pension Board. 

  
Background 

 
2. The Pensions Regulator (TPR) identifies good governance as essential for a 

pension scheme to be successful. The following extract from TPR’s website 
explains the link to training: 
 

“There is a clear link between good governance and good fund performance 
so it is an essential part of effective scheme management. Without good 
governance, you are unlikely to achieve good outcomes for members. Good 
governance is about having motivated, knowledgeable and skilled people 
involved with running the scheme. It’s also about having the right structures 
and processes to enable effective, timely decisions and risk management, 
and to provide clear scheme objectives. It helps you to effectively oversee: 

 administration and record-keeping 

 investment and funding (in local government schemes) 

 communications with members 
 

You should spend time and resources getting your scheme governance right. 
This will help you to minimise risk and maximise opportunities for your 
scheme and your members. Investing in good governance is likely to save 
you in the long run, delivering good value for members and employers, and 
improving member outcomes.” 
 

3. TPR places specific responsibilities on Pension Board members, they must: 
 

 be conversant with (i.e. have a working knowledge of) your scheme rules 
and any document recording policy about the administration of your scheme 

 have knowledge and understanding of the law relating to pensions scheme 
rules and administration policies 

 You must have a working knowledge of your scheme rules and documented 
administration policies in enough detail to know where they are relevant to an 
issue understand and if necessary challenge any advice that you’re given. 

 
135 Agenda Item 12



 

 

 
4. This paper introduces a draft Training Policy for the Leicestershire County Council 

Pension Fund (attached as Appendix 1) for consideration by the Local Pension 
Board. This has already been considered by the Local Pension Committee on the 5 
July 2019.  
 

Next Steps 
 

5. A Training Needs Assessment questionnaire is attached as Appendix 2 to assess 
the current knowledge of individual members of the Pensions Committee and 
Pension Board. The results of the questionnaire, together with the current priorities 
for the Fund, will be used to decide on the approach and topics of training offered. A 
final Training Policy will be presented to the Local Pension Committee and Board 
for approval later in 2019.  

 
6. Training has been provided and recorded on the Local Pension Board training 

programme log. This is attached as Appendix 3 and may be useful for Members 
when they complete the Training Needs Assessment questionnaire. 
 

7. The Pensions Manager will set up personalised training plans for all Board 
Members, recording learning activities required and achieved. This will be regularly 
monitored and brought to the Board at least annually.   
 

8. Officers will, on a regular basis, inform Committee and Board members of relevant 
training opportunities, including:  

 

 Face-to-face sessions provided by external bodies e.g. Local Government 
Association, Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association.  

 Face-to-face sessions held internally, delivered by officers and/or the Fund’s 
providers e.g. actuary, investment advisers, investment managers. Sessions 
may be held jointly with both Committee and Board, or held separately, 
depending on priorities and availability. Some sessions may be held adjacent 
to scheduled meetings and may be linked to specific issues on the agenda.   

 Recommended reading material to keep up-to-date with pensions issues.  
 

9. In addition, induction training will be made available for all new members of the 
Committee and Board, including potential substitute members. 
 

10. The Pension Fund will meet reasonable expenses that are incurred by members of 
the Committee and Board that are incurred as a result of training, having regard to 
the Administering Authority’s Members’ Allowance Scheme.   

 
Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Local Pension Board comment on the draft Training Policy and 
all Members complete the Training Needs Assessment questionnaire.  

 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
Appendiccies 
 

136



 

 

Appendix A - Training Policy for the Local Pension Committee and the Pension Board 
 
Appendix B - Training Needs Assessment 
 
Appendix C - Local Pension Board Training Programme  
 
Background Papers 

 
None 

 
 

Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe, Pensions Manager 
Telephone 0116 305 6945 
Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
Declan Keegan, Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property 
Telephone 0116 3056199 
Declan.keegan@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

137

mailto:Ian.howe@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.keegan@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 

LEICESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND      APPENDIX A 
 
TRAINING POLICY FOR THE LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE AND PENSION BOARD 
 
APPROVED BY THE PENSION COMMITTEE ON [   ] AND BY THE PENSION BOARD ON [  ] 
 
 
Introduction 
 
This policy demonstrates to stakeholders the Pension Committee’s and Pension Board’s 
recognition of the importance of knowledge and understanding of pension issues in the 
effective management of the Leicestershire Pension Fund (‘the Fund’). 
 
This policy, and regular training, is deemed necessary due to:  

 the distinction of fiduciary duty owed to the Fund, compared to members and 
officers usual business.  

 the complexity of pension and investment issues.  

 inevitable changes in the membership due to the election cycles. 

 the Fund being treated by investment managers as a professional client.  

 the potential consequences of not administering the Fund in an appropriate manner.   
 
This policy applies to all members and substitute members of the Pension Committee, the 
Pension Board and officers involved in the management of the Fund.  
 
 
Programme of Training 
 
An assessment of the training needs of the members of the Pension Committee and Pension 
Board and relevant officers will be undertaken on a periodic basis to inform the programme 
of training.  Individual training plans will be developed.   
 
All members (including substitutes) of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are 
required to undertake induction training before taking up their role.  
 
Members of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are strongly encouraged to 
complete the Pensions Regulator’s Toolkit for Public Service Schemes.  
 
All members (including substitutes) of the Pension Committee and Pension Board are 
encouraged to undertake training on a regular basis. The Fund’s programme of training will 
have regard to relevant codes of practice and guidelines issued by the Pensions Regulator 
and CIPFA, the training needs of the Committee and Board, and the Fund’s current 
priorities.  
 
  

139



 
 

2 

Key areas for training will include: 
- Governance, including legislation, role of the administering authority, stakeholders, 

Scheme Advisory Board, the Pensions Regulator and investment pooling; 
- Funding including the role of the actuary, the actuarial valuation, employer covenant 

and employers joining/exiting from the Fund; 
- Financial markets and investment strategy; 
- Pension’s administration.   

 
The depth of understanding required will vary depending upon the issues expected to be 
faced by the Fund and whether the individual is involved with the Pension Committee or the 
Pension Board. For Example Financial markets and investment strategy will be most relevant 
to Committee members and Pension’s administration matters most relevant to Board 
members. 
 
Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Officers will maintain records of attendance at training sessions, to support development of 
individual training plans.  
 
Members who attend external events will be required to report back to the 
Committee/Board (as relevant) to share their knowledge with other members.   
 
The Pension Committee and Pension Board will receive an update on progress made against 
this policy at least annually.   
 
A report on training will be included in the Fund’s annual report. 
 

140



 
 

3 

LEICESTERSHIRE CONTY COUNCIL PENSION FUND           APPENDIX B 
 
TRAINING NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOR THE PENSION COMMITTEE AND PENSION BOARD 
 
 
The aim of this questionnaire is to assess the current understanding of individual members of the Pension Committee and Pension Board in a 
number of relevant areas. While members should have an understanding of all areas, the areas of knowledge most relevant to the Committee 
and Board are highlighted.  
 
The results will be collated used to prioritise training sessions.  Individual assessments will not be made public.  
 
 

 I have no 
knowledge 

I have some, but 
limited, 

knowledge 

I am reasonably 
familiar but 
additional 

training would 
be helpful 

I am fully 
conversant  

General Understanding – for both Committee and Board     

General pensions legislative framework in the UK, for example defined benefit, defined 
contribution, tax treatment and auto-enrolment 

    

The roles and powers of the UK Government in relation to the LGPS     

The main features of the LGPS legislation relating to benefits, administration and investment     

The role of the Council as administering authority in relation to the LGPS in relation to the Fund     

The stakeholders of the pension fund (including members and employers) and the nature of their 
interests 

    

Investment pooling and the role of LGPS Central     

The role of the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board and how it interacts with other bodies in the 
governance structure 

    

The roles and powers of the Pensions Regulator     

Awareness of the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice for public sector pension schemes     

141



 
 

4 

 I have no 
knowledge 

I have some, but 
limited, 

knowledge 

I am reasonably 
familiar but 
additional 

training would 
be helpful 

I am fully 
conversant  

The role of the Pension Board     

The roles of the Pensions Advisory Service and the Pensions Ombudsman relate to the workings 
of LGPS 

    

The role and statutory responsibilities of the Administering Authority’s treasurer and monitoring 
officer 

    

Accounting and Audit Regulations and legislative requirements relating to internal controls and 
proper accounting practice 

    

How the Fund communicates with stakeholders and consults with them on changes     

Key risks facing the Fund     

How pension fund management risks are monitored and managed     

Potential conflicts of interest, how they are identified and managed     

An understanding of how breaches in law are reported     

     

Funding – most relevant for Committee     

The role of the fund actuary.     

The actuarial valuation process, including developing the funding strategy in conjunction with the 
fund actuary 

    

The key assumptions in the actuarial valuation     

The types of employer eligible to join the Fund     

The importance of the employer covenant and the relative strengths of the covenant across the 
Fund’s employers 

    

How employers’ contribution rates are set     

Where an employer leaves the Fund, how the promised pensions liabilities are paid for     

How employer outsourcings and bulk transfers are dealt with     

An understanding of the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement      

     

142



 
 

5 

 I have no 
knowledge 

I have some, but 
limited, 

knowledge 

I am reasonably 
familiar but 
additional 

training would 
be helpful 

I am fully 
conversant  

Investment – most relevant for Committee     

The role of the Fund’s investment in paying future pension payments     

The risk and return characteristics of the main asset classes (equities, bonds, property etc) the 
role of these asset classes in long-term pension fund investing. 

    

Awareness of the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles      

Awareness of the Fund’s current investment strategy     

Key aspects of investment strategy and investment manager monitoring     

The Fund’s approach to responsible investment      

The Fund’s membership and role of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum     

     

Pensions Administration – most relevant for Board     

The Fund’s pensions administration strategy and how the service is delivered to the Fund’s 
members and employers  

    

The Fund’s strategy of communicating with key stakeholders including members and employers     

Understanding of the required and adopted scheme policies and procedures relating to:  

 member data maintenance and record-keeping processes  

 internal dispute resolution  

 contributions collection  

 scheme communication and materials.  

    

LGPS discretions and how employers’ discretionary policies impact on the pension fund     

The tax treatment of pensions including pensions, retirement lump sums, annual allowance and 
lifetime allowance 

    

The Fund’s Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) arrangements, the choice of investments 
offered to members and the oversight of the provider’s performance 

    

Statutory deadlines and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)     

 

143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD – TRAINING PROGRAMME (April 2019) 

 

Topic Good level of 
Knowledge & 
Understanding 

Date Report or 
Presentation/Training Provided 

Background to Legislative Framework   

Key provisions of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013   Training 14/12/15 

Overview of roles and responsibilities associated with the Local Government  Pension 
Scheme 

  Training 14/12/15,  Training 16/6/16, 
4/12/2017 

   

Roles and Responsibilities of the Local Pension Board   

Assisting the Scheme Manager – governance and administration   Report 19/6/15, Training 9/12/15 

Potential conflicts of interest   Each meeting  

Reporting of breaches   Report 9/10/15, Report 3/10/16, 
Training 18/6/18 

Knowledge and understanding   Report 14/12/15,  Training 16/6/16  

   

Roles and Responsibilities of the Scheme Manager   

Pension Regulations   Presentation 19/6/15, Training 
8/2/2016, Report 18/6/18 

Legislation  (some) Training 9/12/15 

Calculation and payment of benefits   Presentation 19/6/15 (further 
training agreed), Training 8/2/16 

Annual Benefit Statements    Report 9/10/15, Report 14/12/15, 
Training 18/6/18 

Discretions   Training 7/11/16 

Internal dispute resolution (stage 1,2, TPAS, Ombudsman)   Training 16/6/16, Training 18/6/18 

Record keeping   Training 7/11/16, Report and 
Training 18/6/18, Report 3/12/18 

145



Internal controls and risk management   Report 9/10/15, Report 3/10/16, 
Report 18/6/18 

Reporting of breaches   Report 9/10/15, Report 3/10/16, 
Training 18/6/18 

Administration of Local Pension Board   Training 8/2/16 

Managing potential conflicts of interest   Training 8/2/16  

Admission Bodies – Bonds/Guarantees   Discussed at the Local Pension Board 
meeting 16/6/16, Training 7/11/16, 
Training and Report 3/12/18 

 
 

  

Topic Good level of 
Knowledge & 
Understanding 

Date Report or Training Provided  

Roles and Responsibilities of the Scheme Employers   

Providing pension information to the administering authority   Report 4/3/2016, Report 16/6/16, 
Report 12/3/18  

Year-end   Report 4/3/2016, Report 16/6/16, 
Report 18/6/18, Training 4/3/19 

Automatic enrolment   Training 7/11/16 

Deduction and payment of contributions   Training 7/11/16, Report 12/3/18 

Internal dispute resolution (stage 1)   Training 16/6/16 (further training 
required in roles and responsibilities 
for scheme employers) 

   

Roles of Advisers and Other Key Persons / Bodies   

Officers of the Authority   Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

Auditors   Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

National Scheme Advisory Board   Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

Department for Communities and Local Government   Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

Local Government Association   Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

Pensions Advisory Service   Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

146



 

 

 

 

Summary of Events/Training 

19 June 2015 - Reports 

Role of the Local Board 

External audit plan 

Internal audit arrangements 

Quarterly administration report (introduction) 

19 June 2015 – Presentation 

Introduction to Pensions  

9 October 2015 – Reports  

Quarterly administration report (annual benefit statements, partnership working) 

Pensions Ombudsman   Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

The Pensions Regulator   Report 9/10/15, Training 9/12/15, 
Training 16/6/16, 4/12/17, 18/6/18 

Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) Provider - Prudential   Report and training 8/12/16, 
4/12/17, 18/6/18, Report 4/3/19 

   

Investments   

Actuarial Valuation   Pension Board Meeting – to hear 
from the Pension Fund Actuary 
26/2/2016 

Different Asset Classes   Training 14/12/15 

Decision-making process   Training 14/12/15 

Risk vs. Reward   Training 14/12/15 

LGPS Asset Pooling   Training 14/12/15 

   147



Managing pension section workloads 

Joint administration and communication strategy 

Reporting breaches of the law to The Pension Regulator 

Risk register 

 

13 November 2015 – Pension Board Reports  

Invited to attend the Pension Board (investments) 

9 December 2015 – Training 

Governance regulations  

TPR 

Statutory deadlines 

Pension taxation 

14 December 2015 – Reports and Training 

Quarterly administration report (exit cap, GMP rec and valuation) 

Annual benefit statements 

Board members – knowledge and understanding 

Local pension board and Local pension committee – key roles and responsibilities (training item) 

8 February 2016 

Administration of Local Pension Boards, Managing potential conflicts of interest (training item – M Hand) 

State scheme changes, GMPs and GMP reconciliation  

148



26 February 2016 

Invited to attend the Pension Board – Pension Fund Actuary, Year-end and the Actuarial Valuation  

16 June 2016  

Roles of advisers and other key persons/bodies (including the Pension Ombudsman – IDRPs)  

LGA Trustee Training event details (3 days split over Oct, Nov, Dec 2016) Ms D Stobbs, Ms D Haller, Ms A Severn-Morrell  

3 October 2016 – Reports 

Risk management and internal controls 

Pension fund governance and administration                                                                                                                                                                         

7 November 2016 – Training 

Record keeping 

Deduction and payment of contributions 

Automatic enrolment 

Admission bodies – bonds and guarantors 

Discretions 

8 December 2016 – Reports and Training  

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) - Prudential 

13 March 2017 – Training 

Service Plan; system tender, IConnect, GMP rec, SLA 

12 June 2017 – Report 

Year End and statutory deadlines 

149



18 September 2017 – Reports and Training 

Record keeping 

Pension Taxation – Annual and Lifetime Allowance  

4 December 2017 – Training 

Roles of advisers and other key persons/bodies 

LGA Trustee Training event details (3 days split over Oct, Nov, Dec 2017) Cllr Jennings, Cllr Bedford 

12 March 2018 – Reports 

Administration and Communication Strategy (draft) – includes, providing pension information to the administering authority and deduction and payment of 

contributions 

18 June 2108 – Reports and Training  

Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2018 

Internal controls and risk management 

Year-end 

Breaches, annual benefit statements, IDRP, record keeping, roles of advisers and other key persons/bodies    

17 September 2018 – Training 

Pension Taxation – Annual and Lifetime Allowance 

3 December 2018 – Reports and Training 

Record Keeping 

Admission Bodies – Bonds and Guarantors 

 

150



17 and 18 January 2019  

LGA Trustee Training Event attended by Mrs Stobbs 

4 March 2019 – Reports and Training 

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) – Prudential 

Valuation – year-end 

 

 

 

To monitor Board Members training, dates of the reports and training are recorded.  

IH 01/04/2019 

151



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2019.
	5 Local Pension Board Terms of Reference
	Appendix A - Revised TOR

	6 Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2018/19
	Pension Fund Annual Report 2018-19 v2

	7 LGPS Central Governance
	8 Pension Fund Administration Report - April to June 2019 Quarter
	Copy of APPENDIX B - Data improvement plan Q report Aug 19

	9 Pension Fund Administration - Current Developments
	Appendix A - Good Governance

	10 Consultation - Local Valuation Cycle and Management of Employer Risk
	Pension Board - Valuation Cycle and Employer Risk - consultation reply 19062019 Appendix A

	11 Risk Management and Internal Controls.
	Appendix A - Risk Register Sep 19 Final

	12 Pension Fund Training Policy
	Pension Fund Training Policy - Appendix 1 and 2
	Pension Fund Training Policy - Training Programme April 2019 - Appendix 3 (f)




